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Consolidated Income Statement
EHZE2021F 12 B31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
ok:a AR FTT AREFor
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W Revenue 6 74,082,292 67,617,835
SHE R AR Cost of sales (51,571,867) (45,185,680)
EF Gross profit 22,510,425 22,432,155
H b Ug s Other revenue 7 783,501 667,617
HFA Other net income 8 1,024,195 567,894
oA AR Distribution costs (15,708,282) (14,150,828)
THEA Administrative expenses (2,469,530) (2,290,999)
HtcEER Other operating expenses (229,996) (475,724)
B 5 & A Finance costs 9 (223,494) (348,639)
Bt A BN B EE Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures 20, 21 121,824 130,436
BRBE AR Profit before taxation 9 5,808,643 6,531,912
AL Taxation 11 (1,424,976) (1,958,228)
AR F R Profit for the year 4,383,667 4,573,684
FEAEER Profit attributable to:
VNN Owners of the Company 3,802,482 4,062,263
DER R R Non-controlling interests 581,185 511,421
AEERF Profit for the year 4,383,667 4,573,684
BRER Earnings per share 13
HAR Basic RMBG67.57 cents RMB72.23 cents
#E Diluted RMB67.51 cents =~ RMB72.15 cents

152 EHEERERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
#HZE2021F12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F R F Profit for the year 4,383,667 4,573,684
Hih 2 (FE) K& . Other comprehensive (loss) income:
T EESIEE R AR E A Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
AERMNBEETZERFRE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (5,652) (367)
BERAABEIRNMEREM Fair value changes in equity instruments
PHEHWGREENERTA designated as at fair value through
NRBEZE other comprehensive income — 32,456
(5,652) 32,089
BAAAEEARESTHE Items that are or may be reclassified
B rEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
b H EE Exchange differences on consolidation 292,959 784,122
AEEHMEE S Other comprehensive income for the year 287,307 816,211
AEEEHENEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 4,670,974 5,389,895
Eh2EKREEEE Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
¥iN/NET)) 323 Owners of the Company 4,070,213 4,847,840
DERRE R Non-controlling interests 600,761 542,055
4,670,974 5,389,895
R AR

2021 Annual Report
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
M2021F 12 A31 BIEFE At 31 December 2021

2021 2020
(i3 AREFT AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FREEE Non-current assets
KEMEREE Investment properties 14 1,807,100 1,771,700
M - BB RERE Property, plant and equipment 15 21,510,028 21,934,571
EREEE Right-of-use assets 16 3,691,741 3,804,456
mEE Intangible assets 17 155,970 165,668
Bk Goodwill 18 97,910 97,910
B2 N AR S Interest in an associate 20 94,847 94,802
ABENAERS Interest in joint ventures 21 625,163 627,031
BRARBEYIERRE Financial assets at fair value through
BaERENSREE profit or loss 22 626,901 1,329,479
BERAAEBESIRKRE  Equity instruments designated as at
HEma2mEKz=REED fair value through other
T A comprehensive income 22 137,317 140,444
RIETHIEE E Deferred tax assets 34 518,605 429,027
& BATE HifF 3% Long-term time deposits 26 5,376,900 2,435,000
34,642,482 32,830,088
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23 4,671,477 3,347,676
JE W BR R Trade receivables 24 2,043,744 1,660,389
A] U [B] 77 18 Tax recoverable 14,729 21,194
TE BN A EUFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 2,352,553 2,240,898
REIF AR ZBNEAE  Current portion of long-term time deposit 26 725,000 —
HEIRRITIF R Pledged bank deposits 26 20,746 37,832
RITEHREE S Bank balances and cash 26 15,838,492 21,393,321
25,666,741 28,701,310
HWEE Total assets 60,309,223 61,531,398
BRRERREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BAER HE Capital and reserves
BITIRAR Issued capital 27 235,633 235,422
&1 &8 Share premium 28 786,965 730,075
& Reserves 29 17,637,378 20,147,227
ERARBRREERER Total capital and reserves attributable
RIEHEE to owners of the Company 18,659,976 21,112,724
DEBRRER Non-controlling interests 19 3,748,524 3,626,659
BRERER AT Total equity 22,408,500 24,739,383
BHEERERAT
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72021412 H31 BIEF/E At 31 December 2021

2021 2020
kz3 AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBERE Non-current liabilities
REIB EEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 32 6,350,369 7,805,122
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16 195,519 215,609
BETRNEE Employee benefit obligations 33 79,920 122,166
RIEFHIEAFE Deferred tax liabilities 34 1,449,910 1,577,110
8,075,718 9,720,007
REBEE Current liabilities
BRAREBEIIRIE Financial liabilities at fair value through
kR IEN S REE profit or loss 31 9,959 9,959
FERTER X Trade payables 35 9,046,518 8,146,974
HEMZFIENRE YIS  Other payables and deposits received 36 9,593,331 10,079,278
EEBEZREIG Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 32 7,311,444 5,891,412
Hit e a & Other current liabilities 39 40,000 40,000
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16 159,520 101,191
BFEIEMIEAE Advance payments from customers 40 3,342,990 2,360,954
AL Taxation 321,243 442,240
29,825,005 27,072,008
waes Total liabilities 37,900,723 36,792,015
BREREZREEHAE Total equity and liabilities 60,309,223 61,531,398
EREB(AREE Net current (liabilities) assets (4,158,264) 1,629,302
BEERRBAE Total assets less current liabilities 30,484,218 34,459,390

FIRREINTEZEAVERREAES
@R2022F3 A28 I E R IR RES R

WHATALTREREZE

$i% % WEI Hong-Ming
EZ Director

H# A4 — BB Junichiro Ida

EZ Director

These consolidated financial statements on pages 152 to 317 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2022 and signed on its behalf by
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MERRERZER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2021F12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2021

FLARFER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RARGE
g )ERRER RE
Eafiu RiH&E Total Non- [Eatig
lsued Share Bl capital and controling Total
capital premium Reserves Teserves interests equity
ARETT  ARETR  ARBTr ARETR ARt ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R200E151R At 1 January 2020 235,401 724,384 18,618,789 19,578 574 3,467,533 23,046,107
KEREH Profitfor the year - - 406283 4,062,263 511,421 4,573,684
ARERE(FR) Other comprehensive income (loss)
AERNELZERE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - 815 815 (1,182) (367)
BERLREEIEREEL  Fairvalue changesin equity instruments designated
2ENAEARNERIA s at fair value through other comprehensive
MEERY income - - 32,45 32,45 - 32456
EiZE Buchange differences on consolidation - - 752,306 752,306 31816 784122
Aft2EhELR Total other comprehensive income - - 785,577 785,577 30634 816,211
REEREURAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4847840 4847840 542,055 5,389,895
BANARFLRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
RELRE Contributions and dlstrbution
EREERNTAZIA Equity settled share-based transactions - - 15,988 15,988 - 15,988
REERETEE T2 RN Shares issuied under share option scheme 2 5,691 (133 4,389 - 4389
BHERER2019K5 2019 final and specialfinal dividend approved
RENRSRE and paid - - B30%8)  (3330%) (355060 (3,696.487)
2 5,691 (3316,316) (3.310,004) (365,506) (3,676,110)
FEEZY Changes in ownershyp interests
BEYHEEHENHBAT  Changein ownership interest in a subsidiary
Rz without change in control - - (3,086) (3,086) (1743) (20,509)
HANARRZRGEE Total transactions with owners of the Company 21 5,691 (3319402 (3313,6%) (38299 (3695619
R2020%128318 At 31 December 2020 235422 730,075 201472271 N112,724 3,626,659 24,739,383
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BZE 2021412 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2021

ADARFER
Attributable to owners of the Company
BxRf
48 JURRER B&
BRE RivEE Total Non- BEAE
Issued Share fE  cpitaland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

ARRTL  ARETR  ARRTT  ARETR  ARETEZ ARRTR
RMBYR0  RMBURO  RMBUO)  RMBUNO  RMBUR  RMBYOD

RONE1R1R At 1 January 2021 13542 730,075 20,147,221 112,724 3,626,659 24,739,383
KEEET Profit for the year - - 3,802,482 3,802,482 581,185 4,383,667
AtRERE(FR) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERFEMZEGEW#33)  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (ot 33) - - (4,260) (4,260) (1,39) (5,652)
ERZE Exchange differences on consolication - - M9 mm 20968 292,959
E2ELEEE Total other comprehensive income - - 267,731 27,731 19,576 2871307
REERENEER Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4070213 4070213 600,761 4,670974
BALARFLRA Transactions with owners of the Company:
RELSE Contributions and distrbution
BReBRh% T Fquity settled share-hased transactions - - 5,075 5,075 - 5,075
REERE 22 ER Sharesissued under share option scheme otz 27)
(Hit27) M 56,890 (13,693) 13408 - 43408
EREREE 200 K8 R 2020 final and specialfinal dividend approved and paid
RRREREHi 1) (ote 12) - = (4062263)  (4062263) (463903)  (4526,166)
EHERE 2021 S50 EARE 2021 specialinterim dividend approved and paid
Wi 12) (note 12) - - (2,500,000) (2,500,000) - (2,500,000)
m 56,890 (6,570,881) (6,513,780) (463,903) (6,977,683)
BEER Changes in ownershyp interests
BEYHEEHENHBAT  Changein ownership interest in a subsidiary
ERERIH219) without change in control fote /9) - - (9.181) (9.181) (14,993) (24,174)
HENARRZRGEE Total transactions with owners of the Company 11 56,890 (6580062  (6.522.961) (47889%)  (7,001,857)
R2021E128318 At 31 December 2021 235,633 786,965 17,631,318 18,659,976 3,748,524 22,408,500
EEmEZER 157
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HERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHZE2021F 12 B31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
btaE ARHFT AR FT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REEKFBEE Cash generated from operations 37 7,386,100 10,429,950
BRI EMREH The People’s Republic of China
("PRC") enterprise income tax paid (1,751,040) (1,529,072)
BEN R Interest paid (216,981) (347,024)
RESTEFIEEEEE Net cash from operating activities 5,418,079 8,553,854
REEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EFE Interest received 783,501 667,617
g & B HRTE X Increase in long-term time deposits 26 (3,666,900) (1,710,000)
B E &R RIIRF Dividend received from joint ventures 21 91,681 374,926
B Uk — B & A mIAR Dividend received from an associate 20 20,015 62,279
BUIR A EEYEE MR Dividend received from financial assets
HIREENSMEERF  atfair value through profit or loss 2,522 135
HEZRAABEIIERER Proceeds from disposal of financial
riEmREIE assets at fair value through
TREE G profit or loss 22(a) 963,895 172,319
BARAAEBEIERER Purchase of financial assets at
FEZERERENSMEE  fair value through profit or loss 22(a) (103,187) (528,916)
BAELEE Purchase of intangible assets 17 (17,086) (1,118)
BAKEMEHE Purchase of investment properties — (31,129)
A - BB REE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,966,094) (2,147,170)
BAERAEEE Purchase of right-of-use assets 16 (14,482) (87,961)
HEWE - WL REN  Proceeds from sale of property, plant
EREEE S and equipment and right-of-use assets 195,778 107,757
I s — R B A A Net cash inflow on
FRgERem A S5 acquisition of a subsidiary 8,829 —
& W B A RIS Net cash inflow on disposal
WeRAFEE of subsidiaries 41 250,989 176,812
JENER 2 FEE)EFE Net movement of loan receivables 25(a) 407,000 55,000
RETHFAESEE Net cash used in investing activities (4,043,539) (2,889,449)
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AR ER | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2021F12 A31HILFE Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
btaE AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MEED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ERNARRRE RS Dividends paid to owners of
the Company (6,562,263) (3,330,981)
BN LHBREEZR ZAE  Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests 37(a) (463,040) (399,145)
ity Issue of shares under share
BT 2D option scheme 27 43,408 4,389
XNHEERE Payments of lease liabilities 37(a) (190,095) (180,341)
FZIRTTER Proceeds from bank borrowings 37(@a) 3,160,010 6,627,179
BERITRAMER Repayments of bank and
other borrowings 37(a) (4,150,754) (6,912,448)
HEMBHEE ZE8)F8E  Net movement of other short-
term borrowings 37(a) 1,251,107 (789,060)
BITEIBMMER Z/FF1S  Net proceeds from issuance of
unsecured notes 37(a) — 3,369,999
X E D AR R s Payment for acquisition of non-
controlling interests (24,174) (20,509)
METEMARESFE Net cash used in financing activities (6,935,801) (1,630,917)
ReRESEEDN Net (decrease) increase in cash and
FOR L) 180 cash equivalents (5.561,261) 4,033,488
FNZEERRELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 21,431,153 17,430,387
ExgogE Effect on exchange rate changes (10,654) (32,722)
FRZ2ESRREZEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year 26 15,859,238 21,431,153
FRAM A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2021F 12 A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of
business are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs™), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.
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B SRR MIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2020 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB4,158,264,000 at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(a) Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.
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(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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FAEEE) (b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)
HEREEE) Changes in ownership interests
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Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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(9

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs"). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.



(d)

Y

REBTEERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

ME - MEBERRE

KAKERE LA R E M T
B URERRFBEBERA
R BRAERTREAINZEMY
¥ BB MREARERZG
FEMRRFREBBEARK ¥
X BERREBEZIRABREE
BEENIAEEEERAE
FA AR 8 B 301 3 B 1F TR E R i
PRES 2 BEREIGKA - #{E
ERERELZFEANERERD
AR FORR e

BRIERZTRRI W% #HER
REZTERRBEEZEIRAE
ez BRI A AT E A FER &
BARERAEGRETRR
E-EYE #ENKREEAR
ZTREBDETREMFH
B HEZKAETRED Z
BizaBEEDE - SEIHD
D EFE -

BF 102304
B8 Rkt
—FEMm 10E12F
— 8 10E12F
— HAfth 5E104
BRRHME 54
IR B 3E104F

HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

- Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages
— Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
5to 10 years
5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3 to 10 years
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(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

When property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property, any difference at the date of change in
use between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation
in accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are land and building that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
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(9)

(h)

Intangible asset (Continued)
Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.



(i)

Y

REBTEERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

SEEEARE

B - EAREISREYRE
éﬁﬁ’\],ﬁﬂ“ﬁm%ﬂ RE2H
IREEORER - B3 BT FI
S HFES] o

[

BERAA—HAELHY B
¥ R B A AT =
Fﬁ%ﬁwm@§§¥ﬁ%
Mo bELHREMAXE S
%ﬁ LRSI 2 2B - HRE
ﬂzh&%Aﬁﬁmﬁﬂ?ﬁ

Bl LB - KRS EEE
SR RARZHEHEDN

B —BORTER B - i
EEERERIERRE - A%
B ER AR R T A KA
HIB T GRS REAR
R BRRTHE -

AEERBERRRELERT

ZESRIEARIARY - M
BESHEBY D B RFEL
BRI - REBHEDEL - RER

VAR AR - AR A EE
EERRE R FEERWE
BER LA BRE TR
EBEBRELHAE - RAKED
EEARTLEER TG ZW
BRERFHEHARESN - EX
SEEEWERERRZEEN
ERIBEENZKREAQT

ZEAEE ETEREMNE
EnRiEs  A&EEEP L

RINEEER -

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group's interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
investee's net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (i) debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, long-
term time deposits and trade and other receivables.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2)

Mandatory FVOC/

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

The Group does not have financial assets at Mandatory
FVOCI.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Designated FVOC/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group irrevocably designated certain investments
in unlisted equity securities as Designated FVOCI
because the Group intends to hold these equity
securities for long term for strategic purposes. The
details of the Group's financial assets at Designated
FVOCI have been set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee

contract or not a designated and effective

hedging instrument.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

4)  Financial assets at FVPL (continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL include investment
funds and listed equity securities as further detailed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings and
other current liabilities. All financial liabilities, except for
financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(ii)

(iii)

incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
in the near term;

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking on initial recognition; or

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract
or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if:

()

(iii)

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases;

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or

they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVPL, except where
the embedded derivatives do not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivatives is prohibited.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that
is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract
is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i)  past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(ii)  nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (recycling).
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i)  information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii)  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, amounts due from an associate, joint ventures,
related parties and certain other receivables are determined
to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(d)

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.
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(k)

U]

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages, etc.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and

AR Bt mEREMN recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
Tz — - RIBERBETTE is met:
HWEFEIL RN

()  EFRBEREEREA
5 617 40 5 P 12 49 25 -

(@  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(¢) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles, beverages, etc., are recognised at
a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.

Service income of logistic services is recognised over time
when services are rendered.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group's performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of
the performance obligation. The principal input applied in
the output method for transportation services to external
customers is based on the distance already travelled to date.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components
(Continued)

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the
goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the
period of financing is one year or less.

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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(m)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payment from customer until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payments
from customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is United States Dollar (“US$") and majority of its subsidiaries
have Renminbi (“RMB") as their functional currency. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.
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(m) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group's

entities that have a functional currency different from the

presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated

into the presentation currency as follows:

(a)

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;

All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(m) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(e)  On the partial disposal of the Group's interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest in
an associate and interest in joint ventures may be impaired
or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a CGU).
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HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

(o)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.
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(g) Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for each
lease component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.
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Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.
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(r)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 year to 30 years

Land use right in respect of Over the leasehold
leasehold land period

Machinery and other equipment 1 year to 5 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;
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(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.
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(r)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of

the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced

to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement

of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining

amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(a)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.
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HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.
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(r)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.
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(s)

()

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.
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Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions ("vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company's statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.

EeamEEzr 205

2021 Annual Report



L e 0 o g

GREIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#HZE2021F12 A31 AIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

(u)

BIR

MBS IRBEAFERER
S RB SRR IR B BB
TERNEEBEHTXRERS
BIEZ R EIFHFTH -

EREBBETRBAESL N

EREERNEGRA M BEREKR 2R
HEMETRSIRcEREZR
B E - AT fWE TR
BT BEENYIERS
KEETRHEIFE G
JERBE N EERA BRI ]
sRTER (B R fta— 8B
AIERSN) - AU &R ARER
I8 o

RTHERETEMSREEME
EERAABERAGTENE
BUEHEELNEEMS -
ZEMENRAEERBER
TREBHEWD - FRIEHEE
HE  EREUFSHENE
= HRERREARNLERME
EREEREREERBE
mAREBHELBENENE
EEARNBITNEEHES - 1
RETHR KELREUEE
WEETNBEEMSRHEENM
BESENEMME/KKD
BT VRIE -

206 EEMEZERERAF

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(w)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.
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(u) Taxation (Continued)

(v)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)

Is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group and parent of the Group.
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(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company's executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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(x)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 202111

Proceeds before
Intended Use %!

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract ?/

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework %!
2018-2020 Cycle

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current !

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies !

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction %

Insurance Contracts !

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information !

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

f Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April

2021

2l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

131 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

14 The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the Group’s financial
information.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16: Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the
interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The amendments
complement those issued in November 2019 and relate to:

e changes to contractual cash flows — a company will not have
to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial
instruments for changes required by the Reform, but will
instead update the effective interest rate to reflect the
change to the alternative benchmark rate;

*  hedge accounting — a company will not have to discontinue
its hedge accounting solely because it makes changes
required by the Reform, if the hedge meets other hedge
accounting criteria; and

e disclosures — a company will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the Reform and
how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements

are made by the management in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements. They affect the application

of the Group's accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are

assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and

relevant factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where

appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in

the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also

affects future periods.

(i)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group’s certain investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on these
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result,
the Group has not recognised deferred taxes on land
appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair value of
these investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.
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(i)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or termination
options — as lessor and lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases. Any change in the judgement may
affect the measurement of the lease liabilities and the right-
of-use assets.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.
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0]

(ii)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
which is based on the Group'’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of
the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.
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(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 44 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 3 assets or liabilities have
been agreed with the management of the Company. The
management determined whether valuation techniques and
assumptions applied are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Group. The estimation of fair value of level 3 assets
included some assumptions not supported by observable
market prices or rates. Change in assumption could affect
the reported fair value of the assets and liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company’s executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
as over 99% of the Group's revenue and business are conducted
in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
holding, properties investment for rental purpose and supportive
functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on profit for the year and profit before taxation, share of
results of an associate and joint ventures and unallocated income
(expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
include certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of
employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated
FVOCI, are located in the PRC. No revenue from a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.

R AR
2021 Annual Report

217



L e 0 o g

GREIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#HZE2021F12 A31 AIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

DEEE Segment results:
2021
PR g
HEsE Inter-
Instant B Hft  segment @it
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total

ARETT ARETZ ARETT ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

Wi Revenue
BEPENESE KA Revenue from contracts

with customers 28,432,040 44,799,982 766,136 — 73,998,158
WER R R Timing of

revenue recognition:
X ERT Recognised at a pointin time | 28,432,040 44,799,982 766,136 — 73,998,158
AEMRREEZBA Revenue from other sources:
REREMFHEZESMA  Rental income from

investment properties — — 84,134 — 84,134
7 ez s Inter-segment revenue 15,606 1,954 932,003 (949,563) —
AU Segment revenue 28,447,646 44,801,936 1,782,273 (949,563) 74,082,292

PHEE(CMRUBEER)  Segment results after

finance costs 2,626,994 3,052,225 35,276 (5,847) 5,708,648
ERBE AR AL ATELE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures 428 132,974 (11,578) — 121,824
AP ZFX Unallocated expenses, net — — (21,829) — (21,829)
BREL AR (BE) Profit (loss) before taxation = 2,627,422 3,185,199 1,869 (5,847) 5,808,643
HIE Taxation (623,087)  (766,547) (35,342) —  (1,424,976)
REE2HH(EE) Profit (loss) for the year 2,004,335 2,418,652 (33,473) (5,847) 4,383,667
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Segment results: (Continued)

2021
2R 8
HEE Inter-
Instant R Hft  segment @it
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ARETFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
BE Assets
NHEE Segment assets 19,917,991 35,239,108 5,020,610  (1,278,657) 58,899,052
BeNmES Interest in an associate — 94,847 — — 94,847
BENAER Interest in joint ventures 803 619,571 4,789 — 625,163
APBBE Unallocated assets 690,161
BEE Total assets 60,309,223
a8 Liabilities
SHERE Segment liabilities 9,018,715 20,305,649 9,531,235  (1,034,796) 37,820,803
VAN =N Unallocated liabilities 79,920
BaE Total liabilities 37,900,723
HihEs Other information
NEREH Depreciation and amortisation 831,358 2,230,326 193,056 (113,064) 3,141,676
BARRY Capital expenditures 521,388 2,448,225 28,049 — 2,997,662
FIBUA Interest income 393,426 426,996 16,820 (53,741) 783,501
FlEZ i Interest expenses 20,106 89,962 177,187 (63,761) 223,494
HEMB AR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 160,104 48,646 — — 208,750
EEEER 219

2021 Annual Report



L e 0 o g

GREIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#HZE2021F12 A31 AIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

PEEE . (&) Segment results: (Continued)
2020
PR 8
pagidil Inter- #ar
Instant B Hith segment
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ABKRTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKTT
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000

W Revenue
REFPANEE NG Revenue from contracts

with customers 29,501,133 37,265,751 769,429 — 67,536,313
WA 2 R Timing of

revenue recognition:
82325 Recognised at a point in time 29,501,133 37,265,751 710,983 — 67,477,867
BE R R 3251 Recognised over time — 58,446 — 58,446

29,501,133 37,265,751 769,429 — 67,536,313

AEMIRES 2R Revenue from other sources;
KEREMRHMEZHEWA  Rental income from

investment properties — — 81,522 — 81,522
SEfE 2 Wi Inter-segment revenue 8,777 14172 1,207,928  (1,230,877) —
ARzl G Segment revenue 29,509,910 37,279,923 2,058,879  (1,230,877) 67,617,835
PHEE(CMBRMBEER)  Segment results after

finance costs 3,980,673 2,654,056 (184,740) (6,970) 6,443,019
[E(RE AN B A EARIESE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures (507) 141,383 (10,440) — 130,436
AOBFE M Unallocated expenses, net — (41,543) — (41,543)
BRBLADER (B518) Profit (loss) before taxation 3,980,166 2,795,439 (236,723) (6,970) 6,531,912
A Taxation (1,246,935) (689,976) (21,317) — (1,958,228
REEZEF(FR) Profit (loss) for the year 2,733,231 2,105,463 (258,040) (6,970) 4,573,684
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Segment results: (Continued)

2020
WP
FEHE Inter- Bt
Instant B Hith segment
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ANREFT ANREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMBOO0 ~ RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000
BE Assets
DEEE Segment assets 25,182,638 31,152,963 5,007,269  (2,003,228) 59,339,642
BeNAER Interest in an associate — 94,802 — — 94,802
BENAIER Interest in joint ventures 375 598,337 28,319 — 627,031
AOREE Unallocated assets 1,469,923
BEE Total assets 61,531,398
= Liabilities
aR=i)=r:] Segment liabilities 9,073,005 16,942,691 12,413,035  (1,758,882) 36,669,849
*HE&EE Unallocated liabilities 122,166
BaE Total liabilities 36,792,015
HivEs Other information
TEREHE Depreciation and amortisation 814,164 2,201,882 222,308 (90,322) 3,148,032
BEARHY Capital expenditures 502,934 1,725,297 38,029 — 2,266,260
FIBUMA Interest income 433,587 284,319 17,015 (67,304) 667,617
FlEZH Interest expenses 20,189 93,293 305,924 (70,767) 348,639
WE - MERFREZREEE  Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment 16,514 49,677 — — 66,191
HEMBA R Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — 117,941 128 — 118,069
2021 2020
AR¥TFTT AERET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FLEUEA Interest income 783,501 667,617
EEEER 221
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2021 2020
st AR#FT ARETFr
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
& R fm 2 W ES Gain on sales of scrapped materials 207,189 171,762
WFVPLIZIEMSBMEE Y  Change in fair value of
NREBEZEFHE financial assets at FVPL, net (21,239) (40,905)
LFVPLEEIEMS@MEAR Y  Change in fair value of
NABEEESEFE financial liabilities at FVPL, net 31 — (285)
LFVPLEEIERMS®MEE Y  Dividend income from
AR F 4 financial assets at FVPL 2,522 135
HENE A Rk Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 41 208,750 118,069
BT B Government grants 356,718 160,431
HEME - W NEMER  Loss on disposal of property,
FRAEEEBE plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (29,527) (77,332)
b Uk e ) 58 Exchange gain, net 36,031 29,159
A Others 263,751 206,860
1,024,195 567,894
&k (GTA) TAIIER % - This is stated after charging (crediting):
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
MBEAR Finance costs
AR S FRNBHEE ZIRIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings
REAME R 2 M E X wholly repayable within five years 204,049 315,096
ARSI LBEEE Interest on bank and other borrowings
RITREMERZ wholly repayable over five years
MBXH 2,867 15,144
FHEABELEZYPBEM  Finance costs on lease liabilities 16,578 18,399
223,494 348,639
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WA RS R IE R Z BT
AL AN E SRR AE
FARIS 2R

EEFEXRAFEEHES T
ME BERLE FAEEE
ZHERBRAERHARE
4,724,716,00070 (20204 : AR
#4,748,077,0007T) - ZESTEIN
FTAM LB B ERIEREE o

2021 2020
AREFT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Htig B Other items
BIA(BIEESHSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
& KRB Salaries and wages 7,306,001 7,011,729
LARE 2= 45 B AR 19 Equity-settled share-based
YA 2 FIR payment expenses 5,075 15,988
RIRE KA Pension costs:
FEMETEN* Defined contribution plans* 683,997 240,160
REBAETE Defined benefit plans (501) (3,690)
ZEE % Auditor’s remuneration:
EZEHN Audit fee 8,172 9,719
FERREM Non-audit fee 776 477
EEFERA Cost of inventories* 51,571,867 45,185,680
e - Depreciation:
ME - WA REE Property, plant and equipment 2,827,355 2,835,810
EREEE Right-of-use assets 306,808 305,819
mR A EHE Amortisation of intangible assets
(EBERDHEAA) (included in distribution costs) 7.513 6,403
¥  WEREEHEZHME  Impairment loss of property, plant and
e (BB EREAM equipment (included in other
KEER) operating expenses) — 66,191
* 20205 - ANEEDUREALERRE * In 2020, the Group received government subsidy related to

COVID-19 in the form of a reduction in social security contribution,
which was recognised as reduction to the related expenses when it
was granted.

# Cost of inventories includes RMB4,724,716,000 (2020:
RMB4,748,077,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and amortisation on
intangible assets which amount is also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above.
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RANBRMESTRITRAZ D XN R The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the
Rtz e@sEmT Company's directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2021
e
XHREEN
e
DY vl TR
HeR Xffz  Retirement
Attie B paymentsand
EEHE Salaries 4 Share-  contribution
Directors’ and other  Discretionary based to pension fit
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB000  RMBO0O  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBYO0O

HrEE: Executive directors:
RE% Wei Hong-Ming 644 5,303 2,080 731 - 8,758
HEE—H Junichiro Ida 515 103 - - - 618
REX Wei Hong-Chen 32 5,113 2,004 731 - 8,170
e Koji Shinohara 30 103 - - - 425
BEEE Yuko Takahashi 30 103 - - — 425
gf Tseng Chien 32 598 124 - - 1,044
BUFHTZEE: Indlependent non-executive dlrectors:
friEH Hsu Shin-Chun 355 103 - - - 458
ZRE Lee Tiong-Hock 355 103 - — - 458
AL Hirormu Fukada 355 103 — — — 458
T Chief executive officer;
R Chen Yinjang - 4,000 1317 449 — 5,766

3512 15,632 5,525 1,91 - 26,580
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2020

XRREEH

U HE]

it

Bk WRHZR  Retirement

e 3B payments and

EZHE  Salariesand el Share-  contribution
Directors’ other  Discretionary hased to pension aif
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

ARETL  ARBTL  ARRTT  ARETL  ARETL  ARETL
RMBO00  AMBUOO  AMBUOD  RMBOOD  RMBYD0O  AMBUO

HHEZ: Executive directors:
RE% Wei Hong-Ming 689 5,365 1829 1,184 - 9,067
HEg—5 Junichiro Ida 552 165 - - - ni
REK Wei Hong-Chen 1,034 5,175 1,587 1,184 - 8,980
BRER Koji Shinohara 345 165 - - - 510
BREE Yuko Takahashi 345 165 - - - 510
2f Tseng Chien 345 653 - - - 998
BUFHTEE: Indeeoendent non-executive directors:
el Hsu Shin-Chun 345 83 - - - 428
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 345 83 - - — 428
REE Hiromu Fukada 345 8 - - - 428
T2 - Chief executive officer:
k% James Chun-Hsien Wei — 18,211 3,198 6,129 - 27538
4,345 30,148 6,614 8497 - 49,604

EEBEEN202012 8318 E
Ko BREZELAR2021F1 818
EZTETHRES -

M2021F K% 2020612 A31 HIEHF
B ESEERSNREFATHRES
BB o

AEBERERDAEE MSUZDFH
ALTMAREEMNMEREES
MAREEEN EMEHREER
ERREHERE -

Mr. James Chun-Hisen Wei retired on 31 December 2020 and Mr.
Chen Yinjang was appointed as the chief executive officer on 1
January 2021.

No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 Decemebr 2021 and
2020.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directorsand
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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REBSUHEaFALBE2MNES
(2020F : 2 BEE RITHBEH)
HMESFBE N X H#H34
(2020F 2 ) AT 2B F 1B W

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year, two directors (2020: two directors and
the chief executive officer) whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. Details of the emoluments of the

T : remaining three individuals (2020: two) are as follows:
2021 2020
AR¥TFTT AR FIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HeLHEMME Salaries and other emoluments 14,011 10,118
VAR 0 32 1+ 2 BUER Share-based payments 208 1,395

BRe I REED Retirement payments and contribution

RIS ETEIE R to pension scheme 7,470 —
TE4L Discretionary bonuses 7,605 5,662
29,294 17,175

FA360(20206F : 200) B H AL
BRI

The emoluments were paid to the three (2020: two) highest paid
individuals as follows:

BEEAE
Number of
individuals
B <& 48 Bl Emoluments band 2021
AR 8,288,333 TE AR 8,702,7497C RMBS,288,333 to RMBS8,702,749
(10,000,001 7= 10,500,000/5 7T ) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 1
AR#9,117,166 712 AR¥ 9,531,582 7T RMB9,117,166 to RMB9,531,582
(11,000,001 7TZE 11,500,000 78 7T) (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000) 1
AE# 11,603,666 L= RMB11,603,666 to RMB12,018,081
AR# 12,018,081 7T (HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000)
(14,000,001 77T ZE 14,500,000 7T) 1
3
2020
AE#7,104,928 TE AR#E 7,548,985 RMB7,104,928 to RMB7,548,985
(8,000,001 &L E 8,500,000/87T) (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000) 1
ANE#9,769,275 T &F RMB9,769,275 to RMB10,213,332
AER#10,213,332 7T (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000)
(11,000,001 7= 11,500,000/57T) 1
2
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2021 2020
ARMFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEEHIE Current tax
PECEMER PRC Enterprise income tax
REE Current year 1,294,663 1,460,775
AR E R B Under provision in prior years 10,518 26,443
1,305,181 1,487,218
EENEH Hong Kong profits tax
REE Current year 2,293 206
EAEBLIE (H1 77 34) Deferred taxation (Note 34)
EAREDZEREEFEE  Origination and reversal of
temporary differences, net (116,825) (19,387)
BAEBENTBEZMEAR Effect of withholding tax on the net
EH#E??@E?’FIJ BFEZ distributable earnings of the Group’s PRC
BRR subsidiaries 234,327 490,191
117,502 470,804
REFEBIELRTE Total tax charge for the year 1,424,976 1,958,228

MERSTTHARRRAEEZ
WA BUAEAITLIR -

2021 F K% 2020F 12 A31 HIEF
B BENESHSLRBMAFEH
SIERATER - EMAF BB X
FIET AEBEENE2008H
TER IR 8.25% M FL REF - M
2008 L A EM R 812 16.5%
BT A o

B K BE 2 B R AR R Ay R B b
EMBMEER X B25% (2020
F:25%) BIEMBE  BRH
BRRNEARERENMELZESH
BEMACEARTEERPAMABELE
Fris BB R 892 & (B #[2020]23
R )+ iz 5 A B K B P R kb & ([ 78 30
M )R B R e B EE E NI IR
B HEEpEEZEERAML
PEBAWARG60% (20204 : 70%)
LA & - £20214% 1 A1 H 22030
F12A3T B HMATEERIZ15%
MEERERRECEMER-
I REBRNABIEZHE QT
FREA15% (20204 : 15%) °

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax regime. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (2020: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai
Shui [2020] no. 23) on the Grand Development of Western
Region jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State
Taxation Administration and National Development and Reform
Commission, foreign investment enterprises located in the
Western Region of the PRC (the “Western Region”) with over
60% (2020: 70%) of principal revenue generated from the
encouraged business activities are continuously entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2030. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries located in the
Western Region are entitled to an income tax rate of 15% (2020:
15%).
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7R SR B 2 BR 3 At A BN R E AR IR

The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense

HERIAT - for the year as follows:
HEMLZHE Reconciliation of tax expense
2021 2020
AR¥For AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 252 A1 v 1) Profit before taxation 5,808,643 6,531,912
RARBDEFERE25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
TIE(2020F : 25%) in the PRC (2020:25%) 1,452,161 1,632,978
I E R AEARI¥4E  Share of results of an associate and
joint ventures (30,456) (32,609)
RN Non-deductible expenses 14,492 74,467
BRI Tax exempt revenue (58,905) (6,062)
ANERTIEEE Unrecognised tax losses 73,407 62,542
AERDRER Unrecognised temporary differences (5,835) (16,558)
HBRBE W ARFERTIARIE  Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (81,983) (142,097)
R EE R 2 B Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
RAAHSEFEZ profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
TEIRER (A5 34) (Note 34) 234,327 490,191
WEBAa 2 HkEE" Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries” (180,198) (126,662)
AR 2 DR BB Under provision in prior years 10,518 26,443
Efh Others (2,552) (4,405)
AFEHIER Tax expense for the year 1,424,976 1,958,228
A KB AT 2 EESIEN A Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries includes the tax relief on

I8 £ B B B8 X B 2 B MO R - A
BEINGHOR - A RRMEEE - 2
FZ L BB E &Y -
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AKRARIBRERAFEESZIK (@) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
B the year:
2021 2020
ARETFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

RERNE B KR 5 Special interim dividend approved and
FEHR S ERE B

paid during the year of US6.88 cents
6.88 EAIlI(2020 4 : %)

(2020: Nil) per ordinary share 2,500,000 —
fEE BRENR 2 RIS Final dividend proposed after the end
= PQ stz
%%EEHQEE;f%MHQ of the reporting period of US5.30 cents
c BREE _ :
5.54241) (2020: US5.54 cents) per ordinary share 1,901,241 2,031,132
FEE B R ERR 2 5 B R Special final dividend proposed after
S O =t 3 AL
H%X{L%YZSEHXES; the end of the reporting period of
. \ )
AR 554 241 U55.30.cents (2020: US5.54 cents)
per ordinary share 1,901,241 2,031,131
6,302,482 4,062,263
MR2022F3A28H M & & - At meeting held on 28 March 2022, the directors
EEEZRBERARBERES recommended the payment of a special final dividend
% i@ A% 5.30 AL R R B & and a final dividend of US5.30 cents and US5.30 cents
FREEBIES.30E - thER per ordinary share respectively. The proposed special final
B RIREIRR B R K BRI B A AR dividend and final dividend have not been recognised as
BB RARP IR EBEMK dividends payables in the consolidated statement of financial

=W position.
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(b) MAFEARNIENIKEFBER (b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
—HFEEFARAIREZJE to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the
BRE year:

2021 2020
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

A AL IR 2 2 Final dividend in respect of the previous
RATB B FE RIS financial year, approved and paid
BEREREE 5540  during the year, of US5.54 cents
(2020 F : FREBHR (2020: US4.24 cents) per ordinary share
4.24 ZAl)) 2,031,132 1,665,491

RAFARENIKEEE  Special final dividend in respect of the
RATBTRFEERHFRIFRE  previous finandial year, approved and
B AT ERAL5.54  paid during the year, of US5.54 cents
X (20204F - (2020:US4.24 cents) per ordinary share
4.24 A1) 2,031,131 1,665,490

4,062,263 3,330,981
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The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are as

MzatE - follows:
(a) BREXRF (a) Basic earnings per share
2021 2020
RARIRERF N RIS Profit attributable to ordinary
waN(ARETT) equity shareholders (RMB’000) 3,802,482 4,062,263
EEITE R Ik Weighted average number of
FIGRER (TAR) ordinary shares ('000) 5,627,083 5,624,061
FREREF (ARES) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 67.57 72.23
(b) BREEER (b) Diluted earnings per share
2021 2020
RRABEFEANEEEF]  Profit attributable to ordinary
(AR®BFIT) equity shareholders (RMB'000) 3,802,482 4,062,263
TFR T (#5%)  Weighted average number of
(FBE) ordinary shares (diluted) (‘000)
B ZFTEERZ N Weighted average number of
FHRE ordinary shares 5,627,083 5,624,061
RNAREREE ZFE  Effect of the Company's share
option scheme 5,251 6,187
ARFTESR#®ERET 2  Weighted average number of ordinary
TR N 9 28 shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share 5,632,334 5,630,248
FBREESF(ARES)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 67.51 72.15
EEEER 231
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2021 2020
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREE At fair value
REH At beginning of the year 1,771,700 1,771,500
PREEZEE Change in fair value 35,400 200
R&EER At the end of the reporting period 1,807,100 1,771,700

(a)

REBZREMRE - B1F
HMAMEREFEESEAREER
T fFE R AR R ST
B1TE R4 85167857 & 1686
5% DA e A B KO3 T A A
BEBETEAYARIAA
A -

AEENEERERHEEET
REUEME  FHERBA/I
E3F - UBEEREHERR
ARG R B 2 i 12 -

KEEEHECHEWAFT
AR M MAR MR 3()

HEAAEEEE NG HERE
MR ZEEZES  BEREAKHE
—RERIUHEERE  Fit
TeAER  SEEAENH
EEMEREE - HRIEEZ
FEHRMREEZ A REBE
H o
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(a)

The Group’s investment properties, which consist of
commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective land use rights, are situated at No. 1678 and No.
1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC
and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada Street and
Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological Development
Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai under operating leases with average lease terms
of 1-3 years and with options to renew upon expiry at new
terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases are set out in note 3(|) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise the reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.



(a)

(b)
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(a)

(Continued)

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

2021 2020

ARETT AREFor

MW12A31H At 31 December RMB'000 RMB'000
1FAN Within one year 47,981 28,316
F245F In the second year 38,653 8,906
FE3IF In the third year 20,942 4,005
FEAF In the fourth year — 2,166
107,576 43,393

DABEFENFMERE

AEREEEMENAABE
o NEBH BRI R B
BEXRERMNMEEMETH
B BEEERBYEXRAER
ML EMZY&E  BEE
B i E R T A R A (AR B Y 8K
BRI A o mEAREEREE
B REES - BEMEM
BRI EUNmSEE 2
ZRHEBEMEINEE UK
MR XN EMEBRBER
AHEFTTS - BEFRMTANEARL
LR T2 ZHEMAZLER
MBUMEERAEH S
X BRERE G ER AT AL AR
HEMEZBHNBETRRAE
BREM - EHEVELAAEER
B MENRSMRERES
HEATME °

AEBZREMFHENRR
BEFESBEEQNABENS
3R RAFEERRAEE
BEZRR3HHERRIZEL -

(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique
and inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived
at using income capitalisation approach. In the valuation,
the market rentals of all lettable units of the commercial
properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by
the valuer for similar properties in the locality and adjusted
based on the valuer’'s knowledge of the factors specific to
the respective properties. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

The fair value measurements for the Group’s investment
properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.
There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.
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(b) DARABEFENFERRE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

FEREMREMEREBE A The following table gives information on significant
R AEEWT : unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:

2021 2021
FHEREHNEA
HARBENBE
REMEME HERTREEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EATA BB HA@A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value

R EBRRE WaERMOE
B E R MEM Income capitalisation

8% approach

Commercial o

properties and EEHA

car parks in The key inputs are:

Shanghaiand  IBERMEHE ZRHAGUAARL  BANE FAHABANDEEES

Tianin REESREENARMNEER L BSRANENED
EEF HRAVEREESNE QAAEBETHK RZTA-
W EE LB R A500% Kk
4.50% » EREAD R A5.00% 2
6.00% 52 3.00% °

Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account  An increase in the reversion

the capitalisation of the rental yield used would result in a
derived from the existing tenancies  decrease in the fair value of
with due allowance for reversionary the investment properties, and
rental potential of the commercial  vice versa.

properties and car parks of 5.00%

and 4.50% respectively in Shanghai

and 5.00% to 6.00% and 3.00% in

Tianjin respectively.
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MEFERE(E)

HERTREERA
Valuation techniques
and key input(s)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

BEARTEAGHMEA

Significant unobservable input(s)

AABRE L@ A
HARBENBE
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

Daily market rent

BAYE

ZRIGH MBERERBAME
EYERG HNENEEZ A
MEPE . EBRREEAVES
BmsAe ] ARALERETE
FHRARRBARKBT20LEA
R¥1MN4A0TRARKE306TEA
R#&a4.907T -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.20 to RMB11.40
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.06 to RMB4.90 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

EES
ZRIEME  H RERYERY
¥Rz BOERNEE - w5 m Rk
PR FBRREEEFELNG
AmEHEDIARARK27.29T
RARE16.17 7T

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.29 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16.17 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

FrANERmEEERA L
o gcREURHEND
REBELF RZFA -

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) ADAEBEFEMFERREE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

2020 2020

FTABASEMEA

HAAEENBR
REMEHWE HERTREEBA EXTABABHNEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
UREEkRE  WRERLE
7 Y AN Income capitalisation
FE approach
Commercial .
properties and TRBA
car parks in The key inputs are:
Shanghaiand  BAIRHMEHEE ERHRLUNERY  BRNEREE FRNEBEHEREEE LA
Tianjin GRERNREMNELRGER BRAY SREMEHENAABET
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Reversion yield

mEARE

Daily market rent
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ERPESNHEEUEXELEAFIR
5.00% % 4.50% * X815 Bl 55.00%
£6.00% 523.00% °

Reversion yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental
derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for reversionary
rental potential of the commercial
properties and car parks of 5.00%
and 4.50% respectively in Shanghai
and 5.00% to 6.00% and 3.00% in
Tianjin respectively.

BAYE

ZRIGE HHERERAANEEANE
AEZBENENER mAmRFE - b
BRRREERNEGETSHSTREN
HEERA BT ARSI ARARRKT.0
TEARBUN20TRARKI00TEA
RE4.8570 -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.10 to RMB11.20
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.00 to RMB4.85 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

B RZIA o

An increase in the reversion
yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.

FRMEATSHESERLT &
SREUEHENDABELT
RZIRER °

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) DABEFENTGRR(E) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
ARG @A
Eﬁi'D\ ABEENEE
BREMEME HERMREZHA EXRTAHASHNEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
FE3
ZRIKHE HHERERNEENELRS
ZEMENRE  mArRRPE - EER
REBEFELNGATSHEEAHAA
R%27.09TRAR®16.007T °
Car parks
Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.09 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16.00 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.
EEYE
XA BBERE  Electrical
EELH Machinery ~ appliances BERE  HRIR
Freehold BF and and Miscellaneous Construction @t
land  Buildings equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
AREFE  AREFL  ARETT  ARETL  ARETZ  ARETE  AREFR
RMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(fita)  (HEb)
(Note &) (Note b)
FEENR-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
20205127318 year ended 31 December 2020
R34
REY] At beginning of the year 21,231 7945402 13217543 41,508 1,202,198 486,109 23,013,991
HE Additions - 1,112 164,568 9,921 613,632 1347937 2,147,170
BRI Impairment loss (\ote ¢/ - - (66,191) - - - (66,191)
ERBER Transfer upon completion - 163236 1,027,940 4,020 174434 (1,369,630) -
e Disposals - (24,562) (80,404) (2,548 (71,620) - (179,134)
HE-HEMBRT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries - @357 (1853  (1M47)  (68,756) - (142348)
ik Depreciation - (498,043)  (1,787,674) (11,803 (538,290) - (2835,810)
ERER Exchange differences (2,028) (1,005) (53) Q1 - - (3,107)
REER Atend of the reporting period 119,203 7552562 12,457,192 29,600 1,311,598 464416 21934571
ma@mEg 237
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RN
XX HERRE  Electrical
St Machinery  appliances BERkE  ERIE
Freehold B and and Miscellaneous Construction @t
land  Buildings equipment equipment equipment in progress Total
ARBTL  ARETL  ARETR  ARETR  AREFL  AREFT  ARKFT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
(fida) (Wb
(Note a) (Note b)
REEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
0215128318 year ended 31 December 2021
LEE
RED At beginning of the year 119203 7552562 12,457,192 29600 1,311,598 464416 21,934,571
AE Additions - 39,145 215,207 6,648 1023563 1681531 2,966,094
FE-WE-HENELT  Additions - acquisition of a subsidiary - 57,148 20,775 3 31 13 81,830
ERER Transfer upon completion - 84143 1128171 3,083 236300 (1,652,137) —
e Disposals - (54,837) (94,175) (1.473) (56,034) - (206,519)
HE-HEMBAT  Disposals- disposal of subsidiaries
(hitar) (Note 41) —  (160948)  (248543) (197) (18365 (1153)  (439,589)
il Depreciation = (498313)  (1793,141) (9.9%)  (525,845) - (28213%)
EXZE Bxchange differences 75 358 (47) (14) {) (19) 992
REER Atend of the reporting period 119918 7219198 11,685,439 28,074 1975027 4823712 21,510,028
R202151A18 At 1 January 2021
R Cost 119203 12,381,380 32,537,228 169961 5,021,638 464,416 50,693,826
SAMEMHESE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (4,8288318) (20,080,036) (140,361)  (3,710,040) (28,759,255)
REFE Net carrying amount 119203 7552562 12,457,192 29600 1,311,598 464,416 21,934,571
R2021512A318  At31December 2021
RE Cost 119918 12340115 32,649,807 162,350 5,762,384 482372 51,516,946
ZHTERHESE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (5120917) (20964,368)  (134276)  (3,787,357) — (30,006,918)
RERE Net carrying amount 119918 7219198 11,685,439 8074 1975027 482312 21,510,028
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TR RN E B AN K A S
Tt

REER  AEEETHRENEE
HEEFHNEERFEIR T2
T S E A RS - BREFE
#2758 & A\ R 138,893,000 7C(2020
F :40,915,000A K& L) £F
RE - NEBEEEBURERE
LR SR o

i

FR - ANEBEELSEERRS
EBEREEZ(LTE - AEBE
RECE EDUE R B D ELERE G
RBERRGEERSN - NEBEY
ERNEEEMRMBE  £EX
EREFEEMYIE - KSR E#
TRER - BRI FEZHERE
MBS BN - AFERBEERE
Bx - At - XEEEBTIRABE
A #(2020F + AR #66,191,000
JT) °

HZE 2021

Notes:

(a)

(b)

F12 A31HLIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group’s certain buildings with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMB38,893,000 (2020: RMB40,915,000) have
not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of directors, the
Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.

During the year, the Group continued to implement a rationalisation
plan for both the instant noodle and beverage segments under
which the Group had devoted more efforts on promoting asset-
light through the optimisation of capacity allocation so as to
improve operational efficiency and reduce operational costs. The
Group carried out the impairment review on the property, plant
and equipment which have been idled for a prolonged period of
time and technical obsolescence with comparably low production
efficiency. Except for those machineries and equipments that was
impaired in previous years, no impairment indicator has been
identified during the year. Accordingly, no provision for impairment
was made in current year (2020: RMB66,191,000).
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#HZE2021F12 A31 AIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

ERAEEE Right-of-use assets
BEMRH
HE+HZ
i fEAE
Land use BEER
right in Htsk s
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other g
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARMFIT ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEHERE-8% Reconciliation of carrying
202012 A31H amount - year ended
LHFE 31 December 2020
REF) At beginning of the year 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
NE Additions 87,961 178,709 5,780 272,450
HEER] Lease modification — (24,866) (1,147) (26,013)
HE Disposals (5,957) — — (5,957)
HE - HENBEARAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (32,851) (121,605) (873) (155,329)
nE Depreciation (100,704) (200,440) (4,675) (305,819)
REEEH At the end of the reporting period 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
REEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying
2021128318 amount - year ended
tFE 31 December 2021
RE At beginning of the year 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
RE Additions 14,482 273,242 9,231 296,955
HEER] Lease modification — (19,766) (316) (20,082)
HE Disposals (18,786) — — (18,786)
H&E—HEMBAR  Disposals - disposal of
(BisE41) subsidiaries (Note 41) (53,976) (9,896) (122) (63,994)
e Depreciation (99,436) (201,104) (6,268) (306,808)
REER At the end of
the reporting period 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
R2021%1A41R At 1 January 2021
BXAR Cost 4,327,388 614,400 16,162 4,957,950
ZEHITE Accumulated depreciation (866,437) (280,203) (6,854)  (1,153,494)
IRTERE Net carrying amount 3,460,951 334,197 9,308 3,804,456
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FEHRESE(E) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
BT
HELHZ
T fE AR
Land use HER
right in HiR
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other e
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
AREFT AR¥TFT AREFn AR%Fn
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
720215 12A31H At 31 December 2021
B Cost 4,260,555 678,903 22,562 4,962,020
RIHNE Accumulated depreciation (957,320) (302,230) (10,729)  (1,270,279)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741

AEBABELEMMEES T
FoERREMERE - HENT1HE
HAZE304 -

PRI

Br A RBOME - B
FERHEALE  BREREEE
ERAHASEER MAEETE
HEMERBBEE

AMEHEMS  AEEEAKEH
MERTFEZTFIRR  TREEE
m B A8 B R AR AR SR

AEEEER

AEHENRRRZEHESAE
MEGNR YTREEEEERER
EAANMERENRK -

ERRRLEERE

REENLHEF L HEGRESE
ERMKIFEERE - SR AEAR
EEREEREBEISITE - Ui
SEEE FARBIE o

J

The Group leases various buildings, machinery and other
equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1
month to 30 years.

Restrictions or covenants

Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
their original condition at the end of the lease.

Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
payment terms that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.

R AR
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HEEE Lease liabilities
2021 2020
AR¥TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

HEEeE Lease liabilities

MENER D Current portion 159,520 101,191
IERENFB Non-current portion 195,519 215,609
355,039 316,800

RERAEE R THE

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

2021 2020
AR¥TFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK - Lease payments:
RHEE Short-term leases 147,452 128,507
KEEBEE Low-value assets 1,356 1,369
RIBRERER X Expenses recognised in profit or loss 148,808 129,876
WIER FHEH K FIE 2 7] #  Variable lease payments that do
MENRERAEA) not depend on an index or
MHEE a rate (as lessee) under leases 58,497 37,237
R RER 2 B Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 207,305 167,113
mAEEA RS RS Total cash outflow for leases 413,978 365,853
HERE Commitments under leases

MR2021F12A318  KREEQD %
BEaRABZEBRERPAE
E2HEAHN - MAZFAERAR
MREEEER  HBERENKA
A R #22,029,00070(20204F : A
FR#38,102,0007T) °

M20215FE 128318 NEED %
¥ A K #33,922,00070(2020 4 -
AFCH# 30,949,000 ) 7 FHHAFAE -

242 EEEZERERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

At 31 December 2021, the Group was committed to lease

contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment

that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that

were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities were RMB22,029,000 (2020: RMB38,102,000).

At 31 December 2021, the Group was committed to
RMB33,922,000 for short-term leases (2020.: RMB30,949,000).
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KERFAE
BHREE Water
Concession resource @t
right licenses Total
AR¥ T AR¥FT AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
REELR- Reconciliation of carrying
EZ=2020F12A31H amount — Year ended
HEE 31 December 2020
REH) At beginning of the year 165,080 18,329 183,409
RE Additions — 1,118 1,118
B Amortisation (5,194) (1,209) (6,403)
(ER IR Exchange realignment (12,456) — (12,456)
REERB At end of the reporting period 147,430 18,238 165,668
IREEYH R Reconciliation of carrying
-8Z2021%12A31H amount - Year ended
tEE 31 December 2021
REY) At beginning of the year 147,430 18,238 165,668
RE Additions — 17,086 17,086
B Amortisation (4,853) (2,660) (7,513)
HE-—HEWRE AR Disposals — disposal of subsidiaries
(Htet41) (Note 41) — (17,159) (17,159)
fEH Exchange realignment (2,112) — (2,112)
REER At end of the reporting period 140,465 15,505 155,970
M2021F1A1H At 1 January 2021
[BFN Cost 191,561 25,143 216,704
BT HEEH Accumulated amortisation (44,131) (6,905) (51,036)
147,430 18,238 165,668
A 20215 12H31H At 31 December 2021
AN Cost 187,296 17,086 204,382
RTS8 Accumulated amortisation (46,831) (1,581) (48,412)
140,465 15,505 155,970
BEAER 243
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Fat @2 R EN2012F3 A %K
BOFRMELE ZHATEEE - FEF
RERRTASEARE Kl
BE  DHLHEEAFRERK MR
EEEMEER  ARERBEK
BE V4 E AR T ACERR A - b AR
RRAMFIAZAZ9FH - HER

ERT IR

KERFAEREEFHRENAR
EESHERNBERKOERN - Z
HEFE10E205(20204F : 204 )

NIABREE S -

BVEERBRAEAFELER

EEZEHRRETRERNR -

Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Water resource licenses represent rights to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which are
amortised on a straight-line basis over 10 to 20 years (2020: 20
years).

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.

2021 2020
AR¥TFTT ABRBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KRR BREE Cost and carrying amount
MR2020F 12 A318 K At 31 December 2020 and
2021912 A31H 31 December 2021 97,910 97,910

HEEEANRAR  RKBMLH
REERLERTEREAREE K
KmHERMEBELENES S
BHMHEMO NS - EEMETEE
BORER AREMATAAH
PETEENERRE - AFME

BT REHPEN o

244 EEEZERERAF

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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SERSELEN(REELE
i 1) EFTR BRI, -

HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group's
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2021 2020

ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

R Beverages 97,910 97,910

HEAMEBEENIB((RRES
EEBMDIER 2017 FWREMMNE
EAARHERAB(MMEST
1) 25%REHE - 72021412 A 31
B AEBEL2EMMNESAIENE
SRE BAFHRBESELSE
AT KEl ¢35 - SAERAERE
EEMEANAFHUBHEENRS
METEA - BBSFEFNBEEREEL
LA2% (20204F : 2% )H) R HIE R =
HEHR  EEEREZENIEH
MITERETEN - W BBEMERET
ENFHRERER -

AmReELBEMRIEEREER
Bl meREeEREE -
L RERBUR(E -

ARAEEAEENIZRRNE
AR

Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. (“HZPS™) in 2017.
At 31 December 2021, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow
projection of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the board of directors
covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
have been extrapolated using a 2% (2020: 2%) long-term growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the value
in use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.

Key assumptions and inputs used for the value in use calculation
are as follows:

2021 2020
ETLES Gross profit margin 36% 37%
TR Average growth rate 9% 8%
AR R Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
IR & Discount rate 9% 9%

EEERBEGTRAREYMHEE
EROBHNETREENE - FEM
MR SHA > WRRERRR
TELEMNBRNETERR

BriEERAReEEBEM K
REEZBERIN ARAREEEL
TREBEFAEMAETEZENRE

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company’s
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.

R AR
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MR2021FE12A3MB T EWE R A
2B M SRR 5E 47 ©

BB EAMBRRRNANEERALE
HABEES -

EANHENBRR

R2017% - ARBIHRZEWNE R
ARMEERREBRARTER
REDEEP —AMIMNBEEATLED
BRIEZDAILEEHZEES
e l) BT WEMM A EA] %
25% B A o AN - BT IR BRI
ERLERES(REEE])  REZ
REEZ ARRESREZRESE
E([BEEE]) B TK B HATH
HEATAI M ZEE D B A
B H) £l 25% A B AT SRR EY
— RN EME R|REHKR - B
3% [ fil 51 B2 AR B8 AT B0 P % 22 &0 A
BEESTHNTER 2022 FEA
SERK °

BERTEESHEMEESE A%
BEASO%MMBEERLERE - A
AEERBEMMNEETENSHR
S RN AETLQRE
EARENHEBEEIHMMNEEA
LEFTSUHEZHRERE - At
EEERRAREEMME F A%
BEEGIE . ALt MM EEA %
ERRAAEENHBAT
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Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 are shown in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Significant judgements and assumptions

In 2017, Master Kong PBB Investment Limited (“MKPI”), a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with one of the
shareholders (the “Vendor”) of HZPS to acquire 25% equity
interest in HZPS from the Vendor. In addition, the Vendor also
issued an authorisation letter (the “Authorisation Letter”) to MKPI
under which MKPI shall be entitled irrevocably to all the rights and
benefits of the aforesaid 25% equity interest in HZPS currently
held by the Vendor for a period up to the completion date of the
registration of the equity transfer (the “Equity Transfer”). At the
end of the reporting period, the management estimated that the
registration of the Equity Transfer with the relevant government
authority will be completed not later than the end of 2022.

Through the execution of the SPA and Authorisation Letter, the
Group holds 50% equity interest in HZPS and has more than a
majority of the voting rights of HZPS. Since the relevant activities
which significantly affect HZPS's return are determined by the
board of directors of HZPS based on a simple majority vote, the
management concluded that the Group has control over HZPS
and HZPS is treated as a subsidiary of the Group.
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EEMNERDERRES 2HELTN
MBER

TRINTAEER -FAEERNIH
BRREZOME QR - RANE KA
ZERAERAR((EMERDDOE
o WHBEMBMERRALE R

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material non-controlling interest (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to KSF

Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF Beverage”), the only subsidiary

of the Group which has material NCI. The summarised

financial information represents amounts before inter-company

R SHAT 2 £ 58 - eliminations.
20215 M 20204
12 A31H 12 A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
DY SRR 2 BEA LB Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 22.09%
DRI E 2 I ZERE L] Proportion of NCI's voting rights 27% 27%
H2021 5 72020 4F
12A31H 12 A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
ARETT ABEEFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEEE Current assets 16,462,352 14,196,877
IEMBNEE Non-current assets 19,491,174 17,988,008
mEAaE Current liabilities (17,848,960) (15,598,717)
EMBEE Non-current liabilities (2,480,529) (1,385,685)
HEE Net assets 15,624,037 15,200,483
DERE R R RE(E Carrying amount of NCI 3,695,634 3,578,274
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EEMNEADERRES 2HELTN

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

BMEENE) material NCI (Continued)
HZE2021% HE20204F
12HA31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
AR¥TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
g Revenue 44,801,936 37,279,923
RFE i F) Profit for the year 2,418,652 2,105,463
H 2w Other comprehensive income 87,992 140,876
2HER AR Total comprehensive income 2,506,644 2,246,339
D8R IR R A R PR Ve T Profit attributable to NCI 581,185 511,420
DR R S Total comprehensive income
FHEE R attributable to NCI 600,626 542,544
EREREERRE Dividends paid to NCI (466,244) (297,235)
Fris(A)IREREF5 Net cash flows from (used in):
TR E) Operating activities 3,440,271 5,104,607
"EEE Investing activities (2,764,733) (1,792,237)
BEEE Financing activities (160,982) (882,456)
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FEEBACHBARRREZEES
L)

M2021F78 RE B M@ — £
BUYE=ZFAUAREBEARK
24,174,000 TEREB ST LR
BERAR(TREBE£ )N
H6.38% M ERER - EAREERN
REASUENER#ERBG67.63%
EINET401% - RER - REA
FEA 26 38% MERE=RKREE
A AR 14,993,0007T ° B - 4
HREER N FAARE 14,993,000
T MAHBRRERMERERD
cHRETNNReREBECEANESE
BARY9,181,000 TEF ALE
kR A B SRR =
RoFEEIFR  -RFEAR - RERED
2HI -

Major changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries

In July 2021, the Group acquired additional 6.38% of effective
equity interest of Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
("CCBL") from an independent third party at a cash consideration
of RMB24,174,000, resulting in an increase in the Group's
effective equity interests in CCBL from 67.63% to 74.01%. On the
acquisition date, the total carrying amount of the 6.38% effective
equity interest in CCBL was amounted to RMB14,993,000. As at
the result, the NCI was decreased by RMB14,993,000 and the
difference of RMB9,181,000 between the amount by which the
carrying amount of NCI have decreased and the consideration
paid were recorded in “Transactions with non-controlling interests
reserve” within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The cash consideration was fully settled during the year.

2021 2020

AR¥TFTT AR FIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

JE LTS - ERERANME Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
FE(RU BB 2B Share of post-acquisition results 110,632 90,572
B U E R B AR F Dividend received since acquisition (86,463) (66,448)
94,847 94,802

REERBE QR 2T

Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

TEEE/

it B rEEREZ

Principal place ERBERERSILA

of business R A Proportion of effective
BENTARB and place of Registered  ownership interestheld ~ FE£%
Name of associate incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities

2021 2020

MRAEULANERAA h US$16,000,000 = 38.96% 3896%  REREERM
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of

beverages
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DA LB 2 ) T S B R A

BUMBmEL o

BRI FERBE DR 2 HBER

TRIVRAREZ B LR Z 8
RISEEAB S R AN A REE R

REEERIG RS -

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in

the consolidated financial statements.

Financial information of individually immaterial associate

The table below shows the carrying amount and the Group's

share of results of an associate that is not individually material and

accounted for using the equity method.

R2021%F 2020 4F
12H31H 12HA31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
= RAEE Carrying amount of interests 94,847 94,802
BZ2021%F B = 20204
12A31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEE - Group's share of:
RF A Profit for the year 20,060 17,544
HAth 2 E W s Other comprehensive income — —
EHKERE Total comprehensive income 20,060 17,544
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2021 2020
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

JE LTS, - EBRERANE Unlisted shares, at cost 363,679 452,832

FE(RU B R 2B Share of post-acquisition results 997,992 819,026

B U E R B AR T Dividend received since acquisition (736,508) (644,827)

625,163 627,031
REEBAEREZHMETNT Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

TEEE/

Bl AEEBEZ

Principal place BEREREERLA

of operation/ T AR A Proportion of effective
RENTEH Place of Registered  ownership interestheld ~FE#H%
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities

2021 2020

BRERYREARAR HE US$11,000,000 31.82% | 31.82% MIRHER¥Em

Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of

agricultural products

FEEMNReBRARA(RE])(H (@) hE US$24,000,000 — 60%  MIRBEABER

Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. (“Kangpu”) (note (a)) ~ PRC Process and sale of

meat products

TERETERHERAA hE US$28,120,000 3896% = 3896% HERHEHM

Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale

of beverages

EEBSAESNERAA(EHEE]) i RMB150,000,000 6233% = 6233% HEREERM

Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. (“JNPS”) PRC Manufacture and sale

of beverages

GTREAEEBRAR i RMB400,000 25% 5%  RET BERAEES

Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and

agency of advertising

LA EFrTBEAE QR IR AR All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity

EEREMIEHEF ° method in the consolidated financial statements.

(@ H2021438 AEEKERE 2 (@  In March 2021, the Group acquired additional 40% equity interest
FINA0% IRFE - REKAREE 2 in Kangpu and Kangpu became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
2EMBAT ° Group.
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EANHERBR

AEEERA HEEREETRAS
80% A= 2L EHEMB A
A EERE 562.33% 2 ERE
Bz - R BIBZIEZEHR
EMBARIEEMREE 2HNE
Rl HREDJKRBEEATLEN
HEAEEEESEM A S L808
BRAFIESZHIES0% MR Z#E
RR—B - BEBEAOERN  KX&EEH
EERMEENSEZEZTNHATH4
FEF BAFPREREEES L
2 TS AR B ) B RS SR B M B R IR
RRIBZZIIEZEEANEB R A
HMEEERE —BORTE « At A
EERRENBEEHBEELEEARE
Hl B A KRS -
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Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group’s contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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BRIEEASL AT ZHBER Financial information of individually immaterial joint
ventures
TR RAEFIRHEZ E 7 ERE The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
BAELZARMNETEERENLAE Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually
EE(G3E4E o material and accounted for using the equity method.
20215 720204
12H831H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
AR TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEmRMEE Carrying amount of interests 625,163 627,031
HZE2021 % B Z=E 20204
12HA31H 12H31H
Year ended Year ended

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
ARETF T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEEN - Group's share of:
REERF Profit for the year 101,764 112,892
H2mEmias Other comprehensive income — —
2HEEEEE Total comprehensive income 101,764 112,892
EZRE AKBEREERNEKXRD In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
BERA material to the Group.
EAEER 253
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2021 2020
k3 AR¥For AREFr
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BFVPLEEWEBMEE  Financial assets at FVPL
—KREES — Investment funds (a)(d) 626,707 1,329,281
— R AEES — Equity securities, listed (b) 194 198
626,901 1,329,479

B EFVOC Designated FVOCI

—ELETRAFES — Equity securities, unlisted (0)(d) 137,317 140,444
764,218 1,469,923

o Note:

REESRNETEEZRE T
RN BEBXEBAINNEREE
EREEURBROBREERF]
NERERREEREES LR
EEGMESEN REHA &
EEEMANBERHARESE
BEFEE IR ARE

FARAESFHRABEREEH
BHRZ ST IS MERE

FELTRAKRENAABEEIEMH
FEERREREARSHRMGE-
FRREANBEZHTALME
E Uz (20204 © AR 532,456,000
TEEARESHERE(TIE
[m)) e

HEREAABENGBEDELE
REABIERHN GRS PR RM T
44 -
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The investment funds represent investments in certain funds which
were set up as a limited partnership or companies with liability
limited by shares in Hong Kong or outside Hong Kong, aiming at
allocating idle funds reasonably and increasing return on asset. The
fair value of the investment funds were valued by the respective
investment managers or trust administrators at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on
a quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange.

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were mainly valued
by the respective investment managers at the end of the reporting
period. No change in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income during the year (2020: RMB32,456,000 were credited to
investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling)).

The valuation technique and significant inputs used in the
measurement of the fair values of the investments are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ETT us$ 715,939 698,621
AR RMB 48,085 771,104
H At Others 194 198
764,218 1,469,923
2021 2020
ARMFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 1,493,137 1,163,642
RS Work in progress 97,433 80,018
K Finished goods 3,080,907 2,104,016
4,671,477 3,347,676
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2021 2020
AR®FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE W AR K Trade receivables
—E£=7 — From third parties 1,881,100 1,551,301
—ARRARZEBREZLS]  ~ From companies controlled by
P A VNG a substantial shareholder
of the Company 35,890 32,683
—ARRREEH — From companies controlled by
KEERK B R B 1Rl the family members and relatives
EOEAVNS) of the Company's directors 1,396 2,005
—HpE R A — From an associate 32,471 1,300
—&E AT — From joint ventures 92,887 73,100
2,043,744 1,660,389
REBZHEKRISMDABEREE The majority of the Group's sales are cash-before-delivery. The
BRTHHEEZEEMNEER30E0 remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
X o 30 to 90 days.
BRAEWRBRZ(ING EIEEGE) NG The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),
BAREZASRAE CREDTT based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as
REATT follows:
2021 2020
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90:K 0 - 90 days 1,920,716 1,579,741
90 KM Over 90 days 123,028 80,648
2,043,744 1,660,389
BEAAEEHENEREERRNE Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks of trade
K& R G B sk Mz 43 - receivables is included in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
FEWEEREZUARETIE © The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
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2021 2020
g3 AREFT ABREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FERER Prepayments to suppliers for

purchase of goods 120,345 55,497
B RREK Prepayments for purchase of equipment 9,335 18
TERTIGER Prepaid value-added taxes 308,982 254,483
A& @M Prepaid operating expenses 1,225,570 941,008
FEME X Loan receivables 25(a) 90,000 225,000
FEUFI S Interest receivables 25(b) 361,488 213,038
e Deposits 127,018 108,242

ERHEREREE R Other receivables from disposal of

E N investment funds and unlisted

equity securities — 96,394
HAith Others 109,815 347,218
2,352,553 2,240,898

25(a) EWER

25(a) Loan receivables

EWERTRAEER 2B A
AERTESETEMEHEER
ko BHHEEEEERR IR
H e WERINERAELE
ARTZEARNEERNTEER
3.85% (20204 : #13.85% =
5.00%)MEFK °
AAREEEBLEEZEEFTHER
HEHET @M ARNEEK
B WEBRELEEBZAR
EHEEFBEREERSN -

25(b) FEUWFIE

FEM A B2k B REE Bl 3
RITHEER ©

Loan receivables represent the advances made by
subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials
suppliers and subcontractors of the Group for financing their
operations. The loan receivables are unsecured, repayable
within 12 months from the end of the reporting period
and bear interest at 3.85% (2020: ranging from 3.85% to
5.00%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

25(b) Interest receivables

Interest receivables arose from the long-term time deposits
and cash at bank.
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2021 2020
AR¥FT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAE HATF 50 Long-term time deposits 6,101,900 2,435,000
IR1TEBRNMIR e Bank balances and cash 15,838,492 21,393,321
HEIRIRITIF 5K Pledged bank deposits 20,746 37,832
RITERERE AT Total cash at bank and on hand 21,961,138 23,866,153
REATHERER A1 E23F » WK The long-term time deposits are made for periods of one to three
BEMNEHFRFEEDAE  F years and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest
B R B345%F4.18% 2 [E(2020 rate ranging from 3.45% to 4.18% (2020: 3.45% to 4.18%) per
F345%F4.18% 2 ) ° annum.
MHIRTERD FHEM - (EAEREM The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
AREE-RBTLESmE (BRI trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
ITIRITERIESZ)MIEITRE 2 KT bills, granted to the Group by banks.
&-D o
MIRETEERENMES BT EFEX A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash
RIRGHESEEY 7 YRIOT ¢ equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statements is as follow:
2021 2020
AR¥ T ABRBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITFERERE Cash at bank and on hand 21,961,138 23,866,153
o REAFEHIFER Less: long-term time deposits (6,101,900) (2,435,000)
HeMReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 15,859,238 21,431,153
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RITEHRRA S B 5 AT 3 & 5

Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following

B : currencies:
2020
ARETT ANRETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 21,256,767 23,386,552
ETT us$ 640,164 439,022
BT EUR 138
E=Y NTD 38,461 21,867
Efb Others 25,620 18,574
21,961,138 23,866,153

EBA%EZNERRREEAR
BB A BTSSR N 3 43 B0 -

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk

discussion are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.
2021 2020
BER BER
Equivalent to Equivalent to
L] FEL  AREFR L T N\EEFr
No. of shares Uss'oo0 RMB000  No. of shares Us§ 000 RMB000
AT Authorised:
FR0.005F T2 EER  Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
BEIRER Issued and fully paid:
REY] At the beginning of the year 5,624,386,360 28123 235422 | 5,623,786,360 28,120 235,401
REBREZZT2RN Shares issued under share option scheme 6,586,000 )] m 600,000 3 bii
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,630,972,360 28,155 235,633 | 5,624,386,360 28,123 235,422

R ARFE RN - 6,586,000 8 i% # & 17
f# A 3R B8 7K 2 8] 6,586,000 ¥ & %
Bin - BRER AR 43,408,000
JCc HR ARM 211,000 T AE 3
FTRR A - T 45 87 A R #6 43,197,000
Tt ARMDBEER - B0 ARKE
13,693,000 7T 1 B IR 1 R =
BH=ER - ZERENSHEH
BERNE=BERS = -

During the year, 6,586,000 options were exercised to subscribe

for 6,586,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of RMB43,408,000, of which RMB211,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of RMB43,197,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In addition, RMB13,693,000 has been

transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share

premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing

shares in all respects.
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2021 2020

AR¥FT ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

RER At beginning of the year 730,075 724,384
RIEBE NG RT 213877 Z B 1D Shares issued under share option scheme 56,890 5,691
REER At the end of the reporting period 786,965 730,075

RIEFASE QAR - B 28 A%
EBRTBENE  TwEAREHE
BT ERTROBAEN

REnEYERERMGER -

B aERZERRREMESHS

RNBNRZIRTE e

ERARRIERMREZBRT K
RAIZBRMDBEEAN YK TRE

HEARR AR IKEZA A RE
ERBEBPRRALS 2 EF -
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Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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ahy
RElEa
RofE B Er
Transactions &R
with (TaEE) HE
hihEEGE  EfEREE non-  GMEEERE  Inestment  EfEER BlRERE
Capitl~ Remeasu-  controling Bichange  revaluation Property —HiE  Share-based REEH
redemption ement interests translation Teserve revaluation General payment Retained &g
reserve reserve Teserve reserve — (Non-recycling) Teserve reserve reserve profits Total
NBEFT  AREFT  AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETr AREFrT ARETT ARETT
RMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 AMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RIB 000 RMB000 AMB000
R2020%F1A818 At 1January 2020 400 (102,963) (1,787,.823) (653312) (5,005) 9,869 4,662,339 392,245 16,103,039 18,618,789
TERRF Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 4,062,263 4,062,263
Rth2ENE Other comprehensive income
REBAEMLZER/E  Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations - 815 - - - - - - - 815
AENOULAEEZEE  Fairvalue changes
in Designated FVOCI - — — - 32,456 - - - — 32,456
EXZE Exchange difference on consolidation - - - 752,306 - - - - - 752,306
A 2AREEE Total other comprehensive income - 815 - 752,306 32,456 — - — - 785,577
REERENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 815 - 752,306 32456 - - - 4,062,263 4,847,840
HADNARFZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEAT Contributions and distribution
BREEROTIZIE  Equity settled share-
based transactions - - - - - - - 15,988 - 15,988
IRIERRIETETTZRG  Shares issued under share
option scheme - - - - - - - (1323) - (1323)
BRERH Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - (75,556) 75,5% -
BHEREE2019FRER 2019 final and special final dividend
FHRSRS approved and paid - - - - - - - — (333091 (3330981
BRERLET Transfer to retained profits - (3,904) - - - - - - 3,904 -
ERERBER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 276,437 - (276,437) -
- (3.904) - - - - 276,437 (60,891) (3,527,958) (3,316,316)
FREE Changes in ownershp interests
BEHELIEY Change in ownership interests
WEBATERRE in a subsidiary without change
in control - - (3,086) - - - - - - (3,086)
ARDAREZRGEE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - (3,904) (3,086) - - - 276,437 (60,891) (3,527,958) (3,319,402)
R2020%E128318 At 31 December 2020 400 (106,052) (1,790,909) 98,994 27451 9,869 4938776 331,354 16,637,344 20,147,221
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02
hRER REER
ReHE ERE
Transactions (TU8E)
with Investment ES
RORERE  ERERE non- AEBERE  revaluation  EfEERRE BREGE
Capital ~ Remeasur- controlling Exchange reserve Property —fRiE  Share-hased REER
redemption ement interests  translation (Non- revaluation General payment Retained a5
reserve reserve reserve reserve recycling) reserve reserve reserve profits Total

ABETT  ARBTL  AREFL  ARETT  AREFL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000

RANE1A1A At 1 January 2021 400 (106,052) (1,790,909) 98,994 21451 9,869 4,938,776 331,354 16,637,344 20,147,221
RERRT Profit for the year - - - - - - - — 38048 3802482
Eh2EhE (FR) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RERHELL Remeasurement of defined
e benefits obligations (Note 33) - (4,260) - - - - - - - (4,260)
EXZE Exchange difference on
consolidation - - - 271,991 - - - - - m,991

Et2EUE(FR)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss) — (4,260) — 211,991 — — - — — 267,731

REE2ENH(FB)EE  Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year — (4,260) — 211,991 — — -

3,802,482 4070213

HENARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:

Contributions and distribution
Equity settled share-based

transactions (Note 30) - - - - - - - 5,075 - 5,075
Shares issued under share option
Bz 2) scheme (Mote 27) - - - - - - - (13,693) - (13,693)
BIRERH Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - (61,853) 61,853 -
BHERERE2000RER 2020 final and specil final dividend
BARSEREMZ2)  approved and paid (Note 12) - - - - - - - —  (4062263)  (4,062,263)
BHEREE 20015455 2021 specialinterim dividend
RS M 1) approved and paid (Note 12) - - - - - - - — (25000000  (2,500,000)
SRERBET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 368,700 - (368,700) -

- - - - - - 368,700 (10471)  (6:869,110) (6,570,881

BEEZEY Changes in ownership interests
EEYNETIEY Change in ownership interests
LN 2] in a subsidiary without change
289 in control (Vote 19) - - (9,181) - - - - - - (9,181)
BRDNRAREZRAEE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - - (9,181) - - - 368,700 (70471)  (6,869,110)  (6,580,062)
R2021%5128318 At 31 December 2021 400 (110,312) (1,800,090) 370,985 21451 9,869 5,307,476 260,883 13,570,716 17,631,378
HtrER=(EE)SEKER &L No income tax effect arose from each component of other
20209F R 2021 FH 8 A FTIS R & comprehensive income (loss) in 2020 and 2021.

Z2 .
=
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B SRR MIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(s) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserves

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI as set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties and
land use right in respect of leasehold land in PRC in accordance
with the accounting policies adopted for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as set out in note 3(d) and 3(r)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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—REE

RIEFREAERG - FEKER A
B —E T DRERTIE R (R R
FPREETHAOIGREMPBEMER
RIZETEHRBREN)10% 2 HKIEA
ERT-REE W REEZR
BECHETEMBARZFMBRAZ
50% B - ZM B AR A EBABER

{AlEg 4

BRERE

BEREFEGEEETAKEEER
RMARITEZEBRERREBHZA
REZE D XREGERBEH
ARy BER Z N REE - #1575

TRINERE M TSR RE 3(1) ©

(a) 2008 FHEMIHESTE

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(t) to the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

B BB OfE RN RE IR AT &
([20085T &l 1) 2 RBEHRE &
M2008F3 208 @ B - %
20085t &2 By ety 2 E
(FFARIA T ) I W3R At AP B 39 X
SEIELAER © 722008 51 &
M2019F3 4198 2 #i & %
B2 RN TTEERD A 1T

& o of the respective exercisable period.

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2008 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The
2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2019 and
the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end

EEeREZERTUTA

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option

THERRAE to:

() ARREMMERF (i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
WEM 2B EBES - officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
TBRABSERES

(i) ARRHKEEMMHER (i any directors (including non-executive directors and

AMEMER(2REIEHN
TEERBIFRTE
F) Rk

independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) ARABEEAHE RG] (i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
REMEER - FERaE o
e BERMNRE -

agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company'’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2020: 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2020: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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2021 Annual Report

265



L e 0 o g

GREIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#HZE2021F12 A31 AIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

(a) 2008 FEEMRAETE (£Z) (@) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
R2008:FEI RN ERFTAR Details of share options granted by the Company to the
AREWNBARIZEERES employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
ZHERERIE LR2021F K pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme and the share
200F 12 ABTHEERNZ X options outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
TEEBRENT as follows:
BF

BREZE

Number of  RITENERESE
¥ BH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price Exercisable period

2021 2020 HK$

200843 A20H 11,760,000 — 928 20133 HA21HZ

20 March 2008 201843 A20H
21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018

200944 A 22 H 26,688,000 — — 938 2014F4R238=%
22 April 2009 201944 A22H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
2010F4 A1 H 15,044,000 — — 18.57 2015F4H1H=E
1 April 2010 20203 A31H

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020

2011 F 47121 17,702,000 — 9,780,000 19.96 2016F 4/ 12H=
12 April 2011 20214 H118
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
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2008 EREPRRESTE| () (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
¥
BREHE
Number of  RITFENBERESEE
®FHH share options Number of share THEE TEH
Grant date granted  options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2021 2020 HK$
20129 4 A26 H 9,700,000 @ 6,296,000 6,296,000 2054 2017F4H26HZE
26 April 2012 2022%F 4 A25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
201345 H27H 11,492,000 = 7,766,000 7,766,000 20.16 20184F5H27H=
27 May 2013 202345 H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
2014F 4 A178 12,718,500 @ 8,961,000 8,961,000 2238 2019F 4 A17H=
17 April 2014 2024 4 A 16 H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
2015F 6 A5 H 17,054,000 13,534,000 13,534,000 16.22 20206 A5H=
5 June 2015 20256 H4H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
20167 H4H 10,148,000 = 2,206,000 7,672,000 754 20217 H4BRZE
4 July 2016 20267 A3H
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
201794 A21H 11,420,000 @ 9,450,000 10,570,000 10.20 2022F4AF21B=%
21 April 2017 20274 H20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027
aF 143,726,500 48,213,000 64,579,000
Total
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(a) 2008 FEEMRFEFTEI(E) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
TE 2008 52| M ARTTE Z B Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EREMEFEHTEEZEE weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share
LU Option Schemes are as follows:
2021 2020
niEFEH ¥
TEE 1T1E(8
Weighted Weighted
average BREHE average fEMRHEEE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
RFH) At beginning of the year 16.51 64,579 16.74 77,094
RERTTE Exercised during the year 7.99 (6,586) 7.54 (600)
RERZI Forfeited during the year — — 9.20 (320)
EREUY, %3 Cancelled/lapsed during
the year 19.96 (9,780) 18.68 (11,595)
REER At the end of
the reporting period 16.99 48,213 16.51 64,579
RITE R ERTEAERRRE The weighted average share price at the dates of
B IN#E 1 RRE & 14.8878 7T exercise of share options exercised during the year
(20204 : 14.74;8 ) » £ 4 was HK$14.88 (2020: HK$14.74). The number of
HHRAN O EBEENE share options vested during the reporting period was
1% % B% #12 12,502,000 (2020 12,502,000 (2020: 7,564,000).
F : 7,564,000) °
MR2021F12A31H @& X The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had
ITEERENMEFEESS®TAE a weighted average remaining contractual life of
%9 H3 &2.904 (20204 : 3.53 2.90 years (2020: 3.53 years). At the end of the
F)o REFEER AJTTFEER reporting period, the number of exercisable options
T B J% 802 43,913,000(2020 was 43,913,000 (2020: 47,777,000) with weighted
F :47,777,000) o A K & average exercise price of HK$17.65 (2020: HK$19.15).

B "J1TE R BE IR RE A I AE
B 1TE B A 17.6578 7£(2020
F:19.15%87T) °
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(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:-

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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(b)

2018 EEREFTE (Z)

RS AR BRERALE - 5%220185T
Sl RAEAAQ Tz HAbBEAR
FTEIRTE T o BRES R 2K
DEE TSEBBAR R AR R
2l E B(B120184F 4 A 26
H)ZEETRMDAI10% -
“ERA ERTHEBRES
/) 48 B8 I 4 58,104,000 % -
BB RN TR AL B AR R %
T 20185T8IE B 2 BTRHH
0.14% °

BELEEEZ20185 8 H
fhEEREAE T ZANRS
BTRE(BEEITERKITE
ZHBE)  EEAIRTERZ
1218 B AR BBER T B
BFEZEITRDMNI% - 2R 1%
BRNRTAEATREAL
o

TEEHETEMNERRE
17 6 & #  DR() B n £ 78
P4 T B RO S P B Y U T
& (i E B AR T B Al
5 & 3 B B A AT A S UL
mE: RilkOEESRZ

R=fEE -
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(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000, representing 0.14% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested after three years
from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are

BN T as follows:
By
BREZE
Number of RITENBRESE
®FBH share options Number of share TEE TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2021 2020 HK$
20184 4 A27 H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 2021%F 4 A30HZE
27 April 2018 20284 4 A26 H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028
2018F 4 A27H 5,626,000 3,785,000 3,785,000 16.18 202194 A30H=E
27 April 2018 2024 4 A26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024
&% 8,104,000 ' 6,263,000 6,263,000
Total
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(b) 2018 FHERMEE (&) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BI& 2018 5T &I M RITHE 2 BB Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EREMEFEHTEEZEE weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share
LU Option Scheme are as follows:
2021 2020
niEFEH ¥
THEE 1TEME
Weighted Weighted
average BREHE average fEMRHEEE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS ‘000 HK$ ‘000
RFH) At beginning of the year 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
RERNTTE Exercised during the year — — — —
RERZI Forfeited during the year — — —
PEREBUY, %3k Cancelled/lapsed during
the year — — — —
REER At the end of
the reporting period 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
EHEEHRN DFEEBIE The number of share options veted during the reporting
14 &) 8 B 1 iR B2 6,263,000 period was 6,263,000 (2020: Ni). None of the options are
(20204 : #E) - RERRERE exercised during the year.
PRAEATIE -
R2021%F 128318 ® X The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had a
TEERENNEESSG TS weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.90 years
#4951 5 3.90F (2020 F : 4.90 (2020: 4.90 years). At the end of the reporting period, the
F)o NEEH - AIITHERER number of exercisable options was 6,263,000 (2020: none)
7 &) % # 26,263,000 (2020 with weighted average exercise price of HK$16.18 (2020:
FoE) MBETFHITEE n/a.
5161878 TL(2020F : T
) e
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2021 2020

ARMTFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

ENSRBERE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 9,959

ZeHERENMNESTLMES
WS ERE  FBEENGE TR
XMF19- B SENREES
BERRENFERBAAMIMNE S
AEMBHFNENE—BoET
B ENBREZAANBERA
R #9,959,0007L(2020 %F : A B #
9,959,000 T ) + FAET AR IEEE T
B B & 2 B3 I B A0 S R FVPL R 18
WEmMBEZREE S °

EFRXBERBEEIABES
Byt A B 25(20204F : BB AR
285,0007T) °

The contingent consideration payable arose from the acquisition
of HZPS as detailed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements which was determined based on a certain portion of
projected net profits of HZPS for specified period as defined in the
SPA. The fair value of the contingent consideration payable was
RMB9,959,000 (2020: RMB9,959,000), which was expected to be
due on after the completion date of the registration of the Equity
Transfer and recorded in the current portion of financial liabilities
at FVPL.

During the year, no change in fair value of the contingent
consideration (2020: loss of RMB285,000) was recognised in profit
or loss.

2021 2020
ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RITEN Bank loans:

A Secured — 157,638
A Unsecured 10,499,244 10,310,892
10,499,244 10,468,530
IR R Unsecured notes 3,162,569 3,228,004
13,661,813 13,696,534
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EEEEINHARBRERBHEN The maturity of the interest-bearing borrowings and analysis of
BT H B R SR IEE) 5 AT (72 the amount due based on scheduled payment dates set out in
B I Z KB EEERNTE) the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any repayment on
T demand clause) are as follows:
2021 2020
AR®FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1FR Within one year 7,311,444 5,891,412
F2F In the second year 2,135,826 2,655,588
EIFEFESF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BEER2F) 4,214,543 5,065,216
HFELAE Over five years — 84,318
13,661,813 13,696,534
WHOEAREAERS Portion classified as current liabilities (7,311,444) (5,891,412)
FERBED Non-current portion 6,350,369 7,805,122
BEEEF ARM1,372,584,000 Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,372,584,000 (2020:
TC(20204F - A K ¥ 1,172,080,000 RMB1,172,080,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
TT)BE—IREBEETL TEE AR lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
FEREBESERBMPRNt+=—@A or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
BRHANBELT BEXREEE- are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
BEEEUIEHEBEASTFEE not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
BRNEREE HBEEETEHE repayment.
RRBAE -
R F R KR E1.47% (2020 The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-

E 2.14%) o

BREERBHERATIR -
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R2020F12 A31 8 RITHEKIF(E
FHRHNERYBEEREEFME -
M- WERRBRFERAEEE -
TED R BLHARK1,122,200,000
7T AR# 559,398,000 7T & A R #E
1,460,861,000 7T ° X IFRITE N
BERE LR ELEEFEITER
HEZEAAEEEB XX ERTH

BE -

ANQEFA2020F 9 A248 B 1T A
% #8 % /500,000,000 3 JT 2 & K
HERB(ELEE]D - ETEBER
#E BRER T (B /&496,043,0003%
TT(HE R4 AR ®3,162,569,000
7t (20204 : 495,032,000% T
(FE & K4 A R #3,228,004,000
TNUEFABEBE RE=ZFZ
FERFINHBREEEMF) - £
Z I HR2020F9 248 B %E F F|
E1.625% M8 - FIBEREF3A
24AK9A24BEEBFFXNI A
202143 A248 # Z=2025%9A
24 HEIES o

ETEBRITNMBELSZSMER
RAEI LW - BEMBERE ELE
B R2021F12A31A M A E
7$492,190,0003 JT(# & B £ A
R #3,138,007,000 7T ) (20204 :
498,165,000 X L (HHE R D AR
3,248,434,0007T )) e E L EETY
RASENEERES  WRAE
KREEEMEAREBEZAREM
7+ R 2 I AT B e -

TREBENETERLH  — &
RIUTEEERLAKEZINETHA
MBARRLEE - MRAEEERR
o DEAMRBEKRARZREE
2o

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s secured bank loans were
pledged by certain investment properties, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets with net carrying amount
of approximately RMB1,122,200,000, RMB559,398,000 and
RMB1,460,861,000 respectively. The unsecured bank loans are
not pledged and certain of the unsecured bank loans are covered
by several cross guarantee arrangements amongst the Group's
entities.

On 24 September 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (the “US$
Notes”). The carrying amount of the US$ Notes at the end of
reporting period is US$496,043,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,162,569,000) (2020: US$495,032,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,228,004,000) and is included in the interest-
bearing borrowings with maturity in the third to fifth years,
inclusive. The US$ Notes bear interest from 24 September 2020
at the rate of 1.625% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrear
on 24 March and 24 September in each year, commencing on 24
March 2021 and will mature on 24 September 2025.

The US$ Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The fair value of the US$ Notes
as at 31 December 2021, based on the quoted market
price, was US$492,190,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,138,007,000) (2020: US$498,165,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,248,434,000). The US$ Notes are the
unsecured obligations of the Company and they rank at least
equally with other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
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KEIEH}%WE,\ SFIELERGE
BENRERNEREHEER LR
ﬁ*ﬂi’%lﬁiﬁ EHE-TELERE A
BRITEERRENER - NEE
ImEIMREREENE —FITER
FIRARA M IS |MR M TE43 - RIS
BN AEBEREEREBYAE
BEREMNRER(2020F - fE) -

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants

and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note

43 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the

reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down

facilities had been breached (2020: None).

RNEFIRERE D2 AT EXRE An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
BZWHRAAT borrowings by type is as follows:

2021 2020
ARMTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
[ 7 | == At fixed rates 4,535,153 4,914,044
RIS At floating rates 9,126,660 8,782,490
13,661,813 13,696,534

BEREENUTIERIIE

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:
2021 2020
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 480,000 1,567,638
ETT us$ 13,181,813 12,128,896
13,661,813 13,696,534

Eﬁilwtﬂ B N K 2K R B A i
TS RERA M RERMFE4L3
E3 U
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AEESMETE  BELREHE
BE2N0pdhE  BERGES
b 77 BT 48 A ) SROE (R RET B - 4R
HAREETEAMLEEZESR
HFEBMZHETEADELER - K
SEEN EREAHETIN - T
VEEXNPE BERAREET
RRE R EEZ ZEH o

RERAE

AEETAMAEREREERHRAT
BRI E - REERBRIFEME
EEEWAERAFTEENO I
AR - RAFTE 2 E B R F 5
k&% EARNTHEFHERER - K
EEYRTRINFENETESHE
UAEEMEREEENAES AT
([ZEHEEEVNDFE - BB
B RBEEFEERNN2021F
12 A 31 BUATEET B AL4R TR A A
1

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group does not maintain any plan assets and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2021 using the projected unit
credit method.

EaEzR 277

2021 Annual Report



L e 0 o g

GREIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#HZE2021F12 A31 AIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

REBFGE (&) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

REBUHERERMTEIFEAZ The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
BEEWET ARG M BIRR K 2 KB position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its
RERBEZEEHEOT : defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of

defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2021 2020
ARHFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 122,166 157,066
REE R Current service cost (3,735) (7,863)
MEKA Interest expense 3,234 4,173
(501) (3,690)
HiHE Remeasurements:
FIFRERAEBEE L Actuarial loss (gain) arising from
BEEHE(RE) changes in financial assumptions 3,187 (2,135)
KERTAREE ZRBERIE  Actuarial loss arising from
experience adjustments 2,465 2,502
5,652 367
EANEER Benefit payment (47,397) (31,577)
REER At end of the reporting period 79,920 122,166
BEHLENTERES The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2021 2020
% %
RS Discount rate 2.70 3.10
T8 ERH BN A 1@ Expected rate of salary increases 3.00 3.00
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RERAE (&)

NEER SEIZRERRKNA
EAREHHATRMNEEZHZE
BT

%

HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
RERF REBM
BEENEL EEE@ My
Change in Change in
BB defined REHE(L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
Prif & Discount rate +/-0.5% -2.93%/ +/-0.5% -2.32%/
+3.10% +2.46%
& HA S B 1R Expected rate of +/-0.5% +2.04%/ +/-0.5% +1.46%/
salary increases -1.93% -1.38%

LHBRESMERESEARBER
BRMAREAREEHRER - mEMR
BRFETE - HBEEBRBR LAY
B Ea Bk e S
R ESMTEFA o TBEFEM LR
RASERREERTERMNEENE
BEREENE AR AMNBEZER
ﬁ%ﬁ%ZK(ﬁu ) - R&8FEME
EREEYCRARRERASE RLAR
FEMBREIN

RATERAMNETHMEFSERER
6.10F (20204 : 4.90 4 ) o

RIFILEFE - cBREARER
260 mIFFHRIRER -

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous years.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 6.10 years (2020: 4.90 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.
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RERAFE (&)

RATRANFERAERTEEE
EAEEYEETWNESTHERD
EHFEEMNER - ARFTHENE
REFEZIHE DT

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is

as follows:
2021 2020
ARETF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1FR Within 1 year 15,924 35,667
A1 FER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 9,660 19,294
A2 FERSFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 10,582 20,134
HBiE5F Over 5 years 77,266 102,816
113,432 177,911

AEEZEEHEE R FERD

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax

mr liabilities are as follows:
2021 2020
k=3 AR¥TFTT ARMEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RE] At beginning of the year 1,148,083 784,251
it — EBEO Additions - business combination (746) —
HEMB AR Disposal of subsidiaries 41 4 (4,787)
MEBARFENER Withholding tax paid on distributions
BT TR of earnings by subsidiaries (333,538) (102,185)
FFAGRA WK A Charge to consolidated
income statement 11 117,502 470,804
REER At end of the reporting period 931,305 1,148,083
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EIEFRIBEE Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the

JFE=E=L NN reporting period represent the following:
2021 2020
BE =R BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARETFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MERBBITE Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (574,183) — (603,222)
WRTEIE Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
NREFHE Fair value adjustment on:
—REEE — Right-of-use assets and
ME - HWBRREE property, plant
and equipment — (42,859) — (50,861)
—BVEE - Intangible asset — (39,677) — (39,677)
—RENREHE — Investment properties — (30,117) — (21,292)
—&@TA — Financial instruments 152 — 7,061 —
AR Impairment losses 80,262 — 82,488 —
AEGHERZEIRER  Un-invoiced accrual 241,424 — 236,551 —
HEME  HER Unrealised profit on property,
BEZAERFE plant and equipment 151,083 — 62,606 —
MERRRDE Withholding tax on undistributed
2 B earnings of subsidiaries — (723,640) — (822,851)
MG EE Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Hith Others 15,850 (39,434) 10,487 (39,207)
EEBEEE(EM) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 518,605  (1,449,910) 429,027 (1,577,110

BIEFBECZEMERE  INBEEE
ERUNPEMNINEREDEME
BRI BBIZEB10% T Rk TE
RA o MR EHR2008F 1 A1H#E
A BAR2007F12A318%

&R ET A o B ADE o fiw B BN
HA3Z SNB 1% B BT B B K Bl [ I

FirEgERKHE  ERARE

BE -

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
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AEENAHKE AR EBTE
E5% (20204 : 5%) - NEBIRIE
EEBERRERENRERPHF
Ao RFEmEIRAEOEER

HEHTEMNBEARTFENE DS
R ELN AR 183,811,000
TL(20204F © A K 183,811,000
) BEASERBBEHMNTIIE - E
EREBERALEZSH T FNHEA
BESEERRzEEES  TH
AR ERTIED B - B bt I £
RAIMNE LT B4R o

REEHR AEBEEHARKE
111,128,000 (20204 : A & #
111,128,0007T ) Fi 7% B E W3R 1 i
ERIEEE - MG E B AERD
HZEBEBRELRBHARAFRZ
sk - REER AEREL

For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 5%
(2020: 5%). Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the
undistributed earnings of the Group's entities are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the undistributed
earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is approximately
RMB183,811,000 (2020: RMB183,811,000) which would become
payable when they are distributed. In the opinion of the directors,
the Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time, are required
for financing the continuing operations of these entities and no
distribution would be made in the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
no provisions for additional deferred taxation have been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2020: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are

MREEZ RBERIAFHOT as follows:
2021 2020
REBEIPRN AR F T AR T
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB'000
2021 — 275,783
2022 95,894 301,105
2023 66,382 155,343
2024 174,699 313,184
2025 286,318 250,166
2026 318,775 —
942,068 1,295,581
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2021 2020
ARHFT ARMEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT BRX Trade payables
F=7 To third parties 7,420,951 6,733,515
ERARB AL To related parties
—ARRFIZEEH — A group of companies controlled by
KEERK B N B the family members and relatives of
THIE—4E A A the Company'’s directors 1,617,147 1,399,649
HENF] To joint ventures 8,420 13,810
9,046,518 8,146,974

BRE=ZT BEBAL BEQ
AMAERAZENERSER
;- RERMA30E0RERS -

RBNESRREEAREZEHRERZ
RRERDOMTIAE -

The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate

and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit

period of 30 to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
AR¥FT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90 H 0 - 90 days 8,364,033 7,243,120
90 HM + Over 90 days 682,485 903,854
9,046,518 8,146,974
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FERBRFUA TN E R IE -

The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

AR#FT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 8,825,620 8,144,649

Ey uss$ 1,458 2,141

BT HK$ 219,440 184

9,046,518 8,146,974

2021 2020

AREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

B Deposits received in advance 2,070,566 1,943,924

BE - EEMES Accruals for transportation,

BR R promoting and advertising expenses 4,912,027 5,184,310
THRERRAEMEE Accruals for administrative expenses and

BRER other operating expenses 650,254 684,131

JEAT & MEHE Salaries and welfare payables 947,298 1,220,365

JEIRRABE TR Payables for purchase of equipment 241,143 170,885

FEATE M 18 Other tax payables 236,213 281,638

FERTFE Interest payable 29,950 21,707

FEAST D BUR R AR Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 902 39

Hith Others 504,978 572,279

9,593,331 10,079,278
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2021 2020
AR#FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR3¢ A A Profit before taxation 5,808,643 6,531,912
FEEA Interest expenses 223,494 348,639
FEBA Interest income (783,501) (667,617)
e Depreciation 3,134,163 3,141,629
RFVPLEERNSMEE Dividend income from financial assets
Z B A at FVPL (2,522) (135)
B EEZBHE Amortisation of intangible assets 7,513 6,403
HEWE - W RRE Loss on disposal of property, plant
L AEEEBE and equipment and right-of-use assets 29,527 77,332
YIEE - B2 R EETIE  Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment — 66,191
RFVPLEREMN SRE R Change in fair value of financial liabilities
AABEZEEHFHE at FVPL, net — 285
KRENEHMEAREE Change in fair value of investment properties
2% (35,400) (200)
LFVPLIEIEM S BEE Change in fair value of financial assets
NREBEZE at FVPL 21,239 40,905
W R B Gain on bargain purchase (7,967) —
HERB AR Z WS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (208,750) (118,069)
FE(REEE AT A E AR Share of results of an associate
ES and joint ventures (121,824) (130,436)
[EREH) & Effect on exchange rate changes 19,287 (80,564)
RIS EE R Recognition of equity-settled
2 I8 share-based payment 5,075 15,988
FEZGEmmL (Increase) Decrease in inventories (1,341,002) 97,399
FEULBR F 2 18 N Increase in trade receivables (440,287) (13,442)
FEMRBEREAMERFIE  (ncrease) Decrease in prepayments
2 (3Z )@ b and other receivables (609,702) 349,023
FETBR R 38 0 Increase in trade payables 962,435 474,046
EmEMZFERDEUIRE  Decrease in other payables
2R and deposits received (208,459) (225,091)
BB RIE Z G N Increase in advance payments from customers 982,036 551,019
IFERETEFEMTIRME  Decrease in present value of
2R unfunded employee benefit obligations (47,898) (35,267)
KREEEFMBRE Cash generated from operations 7,386,100 10,429,950
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37(a) REEDELNEEHIR

37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

TRFAFLAEBEREBELTH
MAEEE  BRERE MR
TEY - MEEHELNAR
RATREIAKRSRE -
BEAEEZARERERT
DERBEEDELNRESNR

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

=

g o
ERDH
& R AR R
(Hiat36)
Dividend
HEEE SEARE payable
(Hat16) (Bt 32) RITEXN to non-
Lease  Unsecured (##£32)  controlling
liabilities notes  Banks loans interests @5t
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
ARBFT ARBEFT ARBEFT ARBEFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2021E181A At 1 January 2021 316,800 3,228,004 10,468,530 39 14,013,373
FHRER Net cash flows
(B (), (i), i) (Notes (1), (i), (iii)) (206,673) — 260,363 (463,040) (409,350)
Bt 25 Other changes:
BEr s Amortised interest expenses 16,578 6,513 — — 23,091
MERE New leases 256,738 — — — 256,738
HEBIIZFE Effect on lease modification (18,735) — — — (18,735)
HENBAA Disposal of subsidiaires
(Hiit41) (Note 41) (9,669) — — — (9,669)
BEIRA Dividend declared — — — 463,903 463,903
R =S Exchange realignment — (71,948) (229,649) — (301,597)
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 355,039 3,162,569 10,499,244 902 14,017,754
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37(a) REEDELNEEYIR(Z)

37(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

JER 8

REBRA

(hat36)

Dividend

MEER EEAZE payable

(Hat16) (hat32) RITER to non-

lease  Unsecured (Hfi#32)  controlling
liabilities notes  Banks loans interests 5t
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total

AERTT  ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARETIL
RMB000  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000

20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 487,556 — 12,374,459 33,678 12,895,693
FHREM Net cash flows
(BT (), i), (i) (Notes (i), (i), (ii}) (198,740) 3,369,999  (1,074,329) (399,145 1,697,785

AEE) - Other changes:

BErsx Amortised interest expenses 18,399 1,673 — — 20,072

EHE New leases 160,885 — — — 160,885

HEBIIZFE Effect on lease modification (26,132) — — — (26,132)

HEHBAT Disposal of subsidiaires (125,168) — — — (125,168)

E bl Dividend declared — — — 365,506 365,506

IE R ET Exchange realignment — (143,668) (831,600) — (975,268)

M2020% 12 A31H At 31 December 2020 316,800 3,228,004 10,468,530 39 14,013,373

() HEBENIHESREEE () The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent the
AYNHREEEZAES R payment of capital element and interest of lease liabilities.
S

(ii) RITEREHE BTN (i) The net cash flows from unsecured notes and bank loans
HiEREEHE  Hi5E make up the net amount of proceeds from bank borrowings,
HRE ROFRE & ) M B 1T IR repayments of bank and other borrowings, net movement of
WERE 7RG BRER other short-term borrowings and net proceeds from issuance
HEBRBITERNFERS of unsecured notes.
ME

@iy FERIERENREEER (i)~ The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-controlling

SREEBFAINOEARE
E’]Hx,%\ °

interests represent dividends paid to non-controlling interests
during the year.
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MR AGEREEMIBHEE 2R In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
FRBEBLIN AR AREFEAF the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
AT ETZEARSIBE @ ik following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
EXGTINAEB B BEGHE of the Group's business.
7 °
2021 2020
i ARETT ANREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(@) FBBALZXZ (@) Related party transactions
BRFARHEERR ! Sales of goods to:
AREZEBRREH Companies controlled by a substantial
NG shareholder of the Company 0] 142,813 151,540
YN An associate 29,306 36,855
BELNA Joint ventures 859,768 544,303
BTIARBEER Purchases of goods from:
/NI A group of companies controlled by
%ﬂi & LB the family members and relatives
NS of the Company'’s directors (i) 6,534,137 5,350,961
Hﬁ%*é" ﬂ An associate 32,928 54,981
BERTA Joint ventures 50,370 59,456
BRFAARZSRHER Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZEEREES 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
4PN shareholder of the Company (i) 32,566 44,758
BTHARRBRKER Administrative expenses paid on
THER : behalf and received from:
X=UNS Joint ventures 1,770 8,536
5D R ERE Rental income from investment
EHERNE #BER properties and property,
wEzHE plant and equipment
AR EERRIEH 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
E4VNG] shareholder of the Company 42,254 42,156
ARRLESZY A company controlled by
REMNK B LB EHIE the family members and relatives of
—fER 7] the Company's directors 3,087 3,189
B REAR XA HEHEA Distribution costs paid to:
AREEEZ A group of companies controlled by
KEKE &ﬁ%? il the family members and relatives of
Z—HRN the Company's directors (i) 1,819,826 670,322
Btata) RIEETRAIE 14AFE - Z5H Note (i) These related party transactions also constitute continuing
BB AT 2RI IMARERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
R e Rules.
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(b) BEREEAEZ#HE (b) Key management personnel remuneration
AEBBEBEESEASE NS Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
(BIEG A IEHRERMTF 1007 including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
BEMAQNTNES @ 1THEXR executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
YRNZZREERASEFESEHE as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
BXZFE)WT statements, is as follows:

2021 2020

AR¥ T ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EENS Directors’ fees 3,512 4,345

FekEape Salaries and other emoluments 39,898 69,766

LARR 19 3245 2 5R78 Share-based payments 2,813 14,469

1E4T Discretionary bonuses 17,250 23,039
BRE I REETH  Retirement payments and

BRIRSET BN contributions to pension scheme 7,470 —

70,943 111,619

ZERIER2017 FUWEBETING FH The amount represents the remaining portion of the cash

IRERIR S W BEIRE Y - B consideration in acquiring HZPS's equity interest in 2017 as

REFE M B wmEMTE19 - FEEIHER detailed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements which

TERR 2022 FHEKAES - is expected to be settled not later than the end of 2022.
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FANEEEYHRELERE 155
MEPAEHNBE(TREERRF RIE

MEBAEENER)WT

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during
the year are as follows:

2021 2020

ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REH] At beginning of the year 2,360,954 1,809,935
MR AW Recognised as revenue (2,360,954) (1,809,935)
WEI R EWMTENF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 3,342,990 2,360,954
REHER At end of the reporting period 3,342,990 2,360,954

M2021412 A31H K& 2020% 12 A
318 - EFEANMRERHN—FA

FER BN -

FANAEBESBBILE=FE]
VEHEBEmRE  HrLEE TN
BARME S iiER 2 MBIRE - B
EFHERFRTK - TR LS
B LEWNBRARIKRGZBEAR
#5208,750,000 SLEFF A B © &
FREBERAABEBRRES T AH
BRAAIZ40%RBERMEEAR
#569,732,000 L 2 Y55 - REBE =
EEARAEEHEE BBRAIRK
FVPLEEEM @ MEEY S A& E A A
EHEE ZZFF LTRAZTHD
NABEDNZ2EZEEBRAZLANE

EFEETE -
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At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the advance
payments from customers are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year.

During the year, the Group entered into several sales and
purchase agreements with certain independent third parties for
the disposal of the partial and entire equity interests in several
subsidiaries. These disposals were completed during the year.
Upon the completion of the above disposals, total gain on the
disposal of subsidiaries of RMB208,750,000 was recognised in
profit or loss, of which a gain of RMB69,732,000 was resulted
from recognition of 40% equity interests retained in several
former subsidiaries at their fair value at the date when control is
loss from the partial disposal of these subsidiaries. The retained
interests were recognised as financial assets at FVPL at the date
when control is lost and were fully disposed of before the end
of the reporting period. The fair value of these unlisted equity
securities was determined with reference to the net assets value of
the underlying equity securities.
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ATt BEREBENS HE B H The following summarises the aggregate consideration received
BERBENERESS and the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the
respective date of disposal:
e
Total
ARMTFoT
RMB'000
FHENFEE(AR) Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
Yz - W RaRiE Property, plant and equipment 439,585
EREEE Right-of-use assets 63,994
BEEE Intangible assets 17,159
FEULER X Trade receivables 66,318
FEETIBE E Deferred tax assets 4
FE Inventories 19,977
TE A FRIE R H A R W RIE Prepayments and other receivables 20,204
RITEBR NS Bank balance and cash 25,531
Hi1E Taxation (4,504)
HEBE Lease liabilities (9,669)
FETER TR Trade payables (65,512)
Hit e REREWRE Other payables and deposit received (361,817)
211,770
HE M E ARG F R Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 208,750
REBERZAREE Fair value on retained interests (96,000)
324,520
2RRE Consideration received
BeRE Cash consideration 276,520
AR S Deposits received in advance 48,000
324,520
HENBARZRERANFE Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
RERE Cash consideration 276,520
BHEZRERBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (25,531)
HEeERRESEEYZRAFE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 250,989
HENB AT WS 2R : Reconciliation of gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
IREBRERR 7% F| Gain on retained interests 69,732
HEMTE A RFR Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 139,018
HEMBARWE(HES) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) 208,750
mmER 291
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AEBENEAEEBERRHERE
BBELENEN  ARREHRD
BEBEMT D ERMEHN R o

AEETARBFARMNMBRERE: R
ReEEMERRATHFEROEE
BE)FENFEGHEER L E(E
RANFRREEEROLLE) AR
REBKRN(BEMBEERBD) - B
2021F12A31H - AEBEFHEF
BEEEALERHIERHATHER
FAEER AEREERABUEE
BEEFERMRBRAEE 2 ERNE
e RN LEEZ 25| 7 EBE
BEENLFEARFEI®RAA -
WMEMRERERL AT

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents and long-term time deposits) as a ratio of the equity
attributable to owners of the Company. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group takes into account of the long-term time deposits in
calculating the gearing ratio because the management believes
that this calculation basis reflect the capital structure of the Group
more accurately. As a result of the above changes, comparative
figures presented have also been restated to conform to current
year's presentation. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the
reporting period was as follows:

2021 2020

AR#FT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(#EZ)

(Restated)

BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 13,661,813 13,696,534
B BekBE2EEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents and long-term

MERHEBER time deposits (21,961,138) (23,866,153)

FHIRE Net cash (8,299,325) (10,169,619)

PAYNSIE & Y e Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company 18,659,976 21,112,724
FREREARLLE Gearing ratio -44.48% -48.17%

AEEBRBECEHMBRAERR
BEETRRIMNEREARAEE I
RBEBERROENHBE ARG
B BARERE EEREE
B BOTHEBARKRERAN LT
MPENLE  ZRMEEERX
HE) KRREATHMKEHES -

72021 F - N5 E K 2020
FHRE BEEBFEEEHESTN
W o
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2021, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2020, aims at keeping the net debt approximately to nil.
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K;‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁéﬁmlfiﬁ%ﬁ?l\lﬁ
B - MERER - FEERRLAD
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B ZEFTERARTHRRERY
R-BEFERINURBRAZER
BEEYERET

SMNE BB

AEEBNHBEARETZAEFBEL
2 FEUARBERZEE - K
£ 18 B T %Y 69 51 E L B R BR AR A A
S H B AR ZWEEE B IASN - A
HMEBEXZNENEARFAS
KRB RUOEH EEMEE &
FVPLEZIE )& B & & K A Bl A
THRER -

ARBERITWABBETHEA
RRTT R M 2 5N E B 4R Bl R AR
- ARNEENHBATMNERE
BREMMOINEEREET RE
FEKLLEININERRYEEX
REL NEARNEEREET
EXREIEB AL INER R ©

REER20215F £ 20205F12 A 31
HUAINE (JEAREE ) EHEBIZFVPL
EEMeMEE RekReEE
Y BEEBERENERFES A
BN ERE M FEmERMEE 22, 26, 32 &
350

HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group's exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of the
subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in their
functional currency. During the year, the Group has not entered
into significant hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to
foreign currency risk.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 are set out in notes 22, 26, 32 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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SERR(E)

m,s;: W BT H B ERE T
B OMARBEZBET - /\E@%
Rﬁé%&AE%R@@ED
FH{E B 1E0.9% 0.7% K 2.5%
(2020F : 73 B B2.1% - 0.3% K
3.4%)  ANFE LB RRE ®
) #& 12 0B > A R 960,000 7T
(2020%F - AR#603,0007T) °

HRE DM RRINE LR A

B B3 R A E A R
WAMEEZ SR AN KR
AR E A B B2 )
RETE -5l 7 BHRRERE
SRS RBERANE T —

HEHZAJRERIRZES o ko
HAEH 2020 FHEF) ©

F=mE kR
AREE T 2 A X E R 2

RUTEHRLRBEEESARERY
F R o % B F R IRTT 48 87 S 0%
BNEXEERESASERY RS
MENMERR HRABEE
SENRBERELERRENEE
RELEBEENFEEERTE

EE LD
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Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
0.9%, 0.7% and 2.5% respectively (2020: 2.1%, 0.3% and
3.4% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB960,000 (2020:.RMB603,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group’s exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management'’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2020.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.
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TRk (%)

HA - REBWRETEKREHE
B AEHBRERERAAEEN
FIERER NEEHR AEEEE
Al & Z &K A33% (2020 F -
36%) -

REEB @ WA £t E8REFT
B UETRARBINEZRITE
HRASBEMNESBAAHAK
75(2020 % - 25) . 40(2020 % : 10)
Bl AEESEERENERE &
#4380 A R ¥ 3,029,000
TC(20204F - 1 7 6 P A R
2,839,0007T) °

BRESTREBEANENRFALIRE
BIWEARAEERFEANFE LR
THHBRESBEENFERR -
ETRAREINEBEZRITESBRE
BEED R #AAKAEKIS (2020
F :25) 1% 40(20204F < 10) H B -
REBEEBTHMNERBARNET —
FEFAERAZAREEHBEZEE - It
DHTEAEEL 2020 FAHF °

FERR

AEENEERRIERENEH
ERER RELASFEY B
Ui B R B B A e RO o AN R B K
MORMERFRNBAERREF
{E¥319 75 M Al (= R A IR & Al %
BRXEREENMEHER
HEEERSELNMFEERNE
R - R a RN RERK
REEREEGNREBRBRE) K
RASENEERR  HEILREE
PR B EE A M A EEIRE
HEE -

Interest rate risk (Continued)

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group's borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 33% (2020:
36%).

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings denominated in US$
and RMB had been 75 (2020: 25) and 40 (2020: 10) basis point
higher/lower respectively and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by RMB3,029,000 (2020 increase/
decrease by RMB2,839,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings in existence during the
year. The 75 (2020: 25) and 40 (2020: 10) basis point increase or
decrease on the bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings
dominated in US$ and RMB respectively represent management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2020.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to long-term
time deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s long-term time
deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in the
creditworthy global financial institutions and state-controlled
financial institutions in the PRC, which management considers
they are without significant credit risk. The carrying amount of
financial assets recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, which is net of loss allowance, represents the
Group’s exposure to credit risk without taking into account the
value of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.
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AEENEERRIEXEBRERP
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash-before-
delivery basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade
on credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject
to periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group’s
estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. The management considered that these factors
do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 to be insignificant. There was no change in the
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.
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Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December

2021 and 2020 are summarised below.

As at 31 December 2021

HBERTEE FEE=RE
Gross carrying
amount Credit-impaired

ARETFTT

RMB’000
REH Not past due 1,554,166 No
BB R ERE Past due but not impaired
30 A Within 30 days 139,087 No
31-90 K 31 -90 days 235,284 No
848 90 K Over 90 days 115,207 No
2,043,744

72020512 A31H

As at 31 December 2020

AR E EEEXE
Gross carrying
amount  Credit-impaired

ARETT

RMB’000
REH Not past due 1,480,720 No
SEHERERE Past due but not impaired
30 RIA Within 30 days 76,515 No
31-90% 31 - 90 days 59,673 No
#8358 90 K Over 90 days 43,481 No
1,660,389
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. The
Group had not impaired these debtors as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors believed that
the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint ventures and related parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
joint ventures and related parties, no matter it is trade receivable
or non-trade receivable, have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31 December
2021, the additional loss allowance for provision for amounts due
from these parties was insignificant.
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BEHEAM—REBERR  XRHET
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Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group’s loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
after taking into account the financial position, quality of the
counterparties and past settlement records. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 66.67% (2020: 73.33%) of loan receivables which
was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and 100% of loan
receivables (2020: 100%) was due from the Group's five largest
debtors.
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REBESRRE Liquidity risk

AEEBHEHRNADECRBREREZ The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
BEZABEAERHARSRENANER maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
M ZOREEEMEREE - I credit facilities. Also, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
B XAEBTHERBAENLTBEHY current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
MHELE R LEEBEAHEI R relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
BEGHEIEITEONESHT K - RNE end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that
HBANAERAERK  EETEEAK the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.

SEYERBESER

REEBZEHBERGEEHEZESEY The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of
HEAR 2 THIMIRE O RITIHE the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
EmEFTROT is summarised below:

1€ 2L

15K BE2FR  BESFR

HEREHK  Morethan  More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but S5ENL

1 year or within less than Over &t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ABBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

A2021512A318 At 31 December 2021

FEITEER Trade payables 9,046,518 — — — 9,046,518

Hib AR R Other payables and
2 deposits received 8,409,820 — — — 8,409,820
HERE Lease liabilities 171,452 115,503 84,001 9,555 380,511
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 7,452,251 2,221,916 4,324,734 — 13,998,901
EtREHaE Other current liabilities 40,000 — — — 40,000
R ERE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 — — — 9,959
25,130,000 2,337,419 4,408,735 9,555 31,885,709
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RBESRER(E)

HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Liquidity risk (Continued)

1A E 2FHE

1ENsg  BEER EESER

BREKER  Morethan  More than

Within Tyearbut 2 years but SFNUE

1 year or within less than Over At
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ANEETFT ANREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000

20205128318 At 31 December 2020

JERTERX Trade payables 8,146,974 — — — 8,146,974
HibERFIER Other payables and

BElRe deposits received 8,556,834 — — — 8,556,834
HERE Lease liabilities 111,945 92,156 110,948 32,184 347,233
BRfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 6,045085 2776422  5259,624 122,619 14,203,750
HEtRBaE Other current liabilities 40,000 — — — 40,000
B ERE Contingent consideration payable 9,959 — — — 9,959

22,910,797 2,868,578 5,370,572 154,803 31,304,750

ERBZeE—RETERATE
BHEBERLTEEMAFERZRKKEE
FEER - HAEESBERLE W
BRARERERIER REE
EWTEHRBEAGTEAERE
FE R AR ¥1,372,584,000
TC(2020%F - A KR #1,172,080,000
T)RBEERER LA BE %
ZEENKREFBRERFHE
U

The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,372,584,000
(2020: RMB1,172,080,000) as at the end of the financial period
have been so classified even though the directors do not expect
that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment
and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the
following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:

2021 2020
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings
16 R Within 1 year 1,381,697 1,180,955
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(a) UDAABEIENSREEREE (@) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

T & £ % 12021512 A 31 The following table presents the financial assets and
H REBWEHRSERSE liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their
BRIAAEBEFEIFMERE fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a
HARBEERHIEN=EZ recurring basis at 31 December 2021 across the three levels
B LAREBEFEHEE of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
HRBMBREEEALEEN Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
SMEEHAE  AREER in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
ERORDE AN L significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined
EREATEZRANRKES as follows:

o BESRFBEWOT -

—  HZRN(&ZEARF) - K& - Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
E R fEEt 2 B IR active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
s LHEREENRARBD Group can access at the measurement date;
WMECREAR)

— B2 BREEEE & -~ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
RIRRESN - AT BB ki@ within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
BR2EERBENGR liability, either directly or indirectly;

A

-  BAIB3(&ERT)  BEE - Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
BR7EERAENR or liability.

Ao
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DAABHEIRNSHEERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
() (Continued)
202 2020
IR fn A3 At Fah $ial fiA3 Aif
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETE ARETE ABEFT ARETEL AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBU0O  RMBUOO  AMBOOO  RMBOGO  RMBUOO  RMBOOD
EE Assets
BRPLEBHSGEE  Fnancal assets at VP
-REES - Investment funds - — 626707 626707 771,104 - SS8I7T 132981
- FikaES - Eouity securiie, lsted 19 - - 194 198 - - 198
EERO0 Desigrated FIOCI
—FETRAES - Eouity securiies, unlisted - S 12 VAR E T - — 04 1d0du
19 - 764,024 764,218 771,302 - 698,621 1469923
g Liabilities
ZRPEZSERE  Financil labilties at FVPL
-ERUARE - Contingent consideration payable - - 9,959 9,959 - - 9,959 9,959
- - 9,959 9,959 - - 9,959 9,959

M2021F K2020FEE R - R
EHEBEARNIELR2 2ME
BE . LEEEBREZLR
3SkEARAI3EHE o

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

value measurements.

EaEEE 303
2021 Annual Report



L e 0 o g

GREIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#HZE2021F12 A31 AIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

RARBEIGNENEERAR
(%)

M2021E HK 2020 FENEEHA
EAREBETESE A3

(a) (a)

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value

RIFFAZE BT - hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
are shown as follows:
2021 2020
EE af BE af
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BIVPLER RFVPLESE
MemEE  EEFVOC MEREE  HEEAOC
Designated Designated
FVPL Fvocl FVPL Fvodl
L A ¥ 30
REES REE% AERE REES RARES JERE
Equity  Contingent Equity ~ Contingent
Investment securities, ~ consideration Investment securities,  consideration
funds unlisted payable funds unlisted payable
ARBFL  AREFT  ARETZ  AEETT  AEETT  ARETT
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
READ At beginning of the year 558,177 140,444 (9,959) 425,698 115,614 (9,674)
BA/RE Purchases/additions 103,187 - - 428916 - -
e Disposal (1,528) - - (202,779) - -
BA5I BYET (BB)  Total gains or (losses)
recognised:
-B& - in profit or oss (20,747) - — (33999) - (285)
-Et2ENE - in other comprehensive
income - — — — 32,456 -
ERER Exchange difference (12,382) (3127) - (54,659) (7,626) —
RESH At the end of
the reporting period 626,707 1371317 (9.959) 558,177 140,444 (9,959)
RESAKAEZEER  Changein unrealised
ARIFARBNES gains or (losses) for
FRANRD (5R) the year included in
288 profit or loss for
assets and liabilities
held at the end of
the reporting period (21,467) — — 12,423 — (285)
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

(i)

Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

The fair value of these investment funds in Level 3 is
mainly estimated either based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors by
the investment manager or the fair values of the
companies invested by the funds as at the end of
the reporting period. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price, while
the fair values of unlisted investments are estimated
by the respective investment managers using valuation
techniques including mainly price-to-sales (P/S) ratio
model and net asset value approach (2020: price-to-
sales (P/S) ratio model and net asset value approach).
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair value
measurement (Continued)

(ir)

(i)

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price-to-sales (P/S) ratio model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.

Financial liabilities at FVPL: Contingent consideration
payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable in
Level 3 is determined by using the income approach
based on the expected payment amounts and their
associated probabilities. When appropriate, it is
discounted to present value. In the opinion of the
directors, changing one or more of the inputs to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change the fair value significantly.
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HZE 2021

(@) HUXAREEVRNEHEERES ()
(%)

FETTBERACANELER
KBREZ2D

ZRIBAREEFAEBEZEET
AERBAERNEEER

F12 A31HLIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
inputs and sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable

WRRE 2 BB inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MEBERFEE
AEERE
g Eolih 7
Rang Impact on fair
1283182 value and
DfEE the Group's total
Fair value FIRRBANREHDARERGRR comprehensive
at 31 December (ERRBRERSTR) income for
wy  HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes SENTHEE the year
i JggFr  Valuation  FTEEBA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NREET
Description AMBO00  techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AMB 000
RRPLRENSREE
Financial assets at FVPL
BEES 626707 TREEE RHEERE% FEBMAREMS ADAREME RIAA: 45 % 4-2,286
Investment funds PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 0% the fair value and vice versa;
THRATL T HE THRAT PAmHEER  RRLEESS +-50% 435,357
0655082 Rz
Average PIS ratio of comparable  The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice versa;
06510 0.82 times
FEEBEL [AEELABRNER BEEVIEANBEER  EAERAREHE  BaH%E4- 9% H4H43%
(T#8&)) 413,34
Net asset Fair value of individual assest less  The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, the ~ Ranging from Ranging from
value approach liablities (the "Net Assets”) ~ higher the estimated fai value 1% 10 4-9% t431 1o
+-13,39%
fEER0C
Designated FVOCI
¥ HTRAEE 137317 TEERE  EEEERE0% EFRBERRER  EOAREMS R2TA- +-5% 4583
Equity securities, unlisted PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 0% the fair value and vice versa;
THRATL T HE THBAT P HEER RRLEESS +-43% 471428
B082fE R
Average PIS ratio of comparable  The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies of 0.82 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice versa;
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() UAABEIENSHREERAR (@) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
TERTEEGASANELER Quantitative information of the significant
RBRE#E (Z) unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs (Continued)
MEEREALE
KEERE
hEgENZE
R2020% Impact on fair
1283182 valug and
MER R the Group's total
Fair value TIRRBANREHDARERGRR comprehensive
at 31 December (ERRBRERETR) income for
wo  EERE Sensitvity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i JggFr  Valuation  FTEEEA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NREFT
Description AMB000 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range RB 000
RRPLRENSREE
Financial assets at FVPL
REES 558177 WHEEEY  BEEERE-10% ERRESARENR  ADAREMS  R2AA: +5% 42,64
Investment funds PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of-10% the fair value and vice versa;
BRI M Ak ARRAF P ERER - ALBEER +-50% +-23,849
BOEL7M B2
Average PIS ratio of comparable  The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice versa;
09910 1.17 times
FRERE: EREELABEHGRE FEEZMLABEER ETMLABEER  A+M%EH-S% B+-423F 441,508
(T#&E])
Net asset Fair value of inividual assest less ~ The higher the estimated far value of the Net Assets, the~ Ranging from Ranging from
value approach liabiliies (the "Net Assets”) ~ higher the estimated fai value H1% 045t 4423 10 441,528
R AV0C
Designated FVOCI
¥ FRAES 140444 TIHERY  BHEERE-10% EERMAREUS EDABEME RZMR- 4 5% 46,201
Equity securities, unlisted PIS ratio model - Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of -10% the fair value and vice verss;
RERT TERE  ARRAIZTHTERES ALLBEES H- 3% + 47,698
117 RN
Average PIS ratio of comparable  The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies of 1.17 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice versa;
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(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2021.
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In addition to the commitments disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the commitments

BRRAGEEMHREREMIDEE
ZHEYE - REBB THESE

as follow:
BAX HAEE Capital expenditure commitments
2021 2020
AR¥FT ARBFT
BRI KRB Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
BEME  #HER Expenditures on property,
B plant and equipment 990,797 672,014

RBARDENRERE - ARAH
B R R R EEHIRIAT

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the Company
and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

2021 2020
it ARET T ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
Vs - R REE Property, plant and equipment 285 353
PREEE Right-of-use assets 2,465 3,349
NGRS Interest in subsidiaries 12,528,304 11,507,436
EIVPLRENESMEE Financial assets at FVPL 552,844 558,375
FETE IR FVOCI BRIE /Y Equity instruments designated
= as at FVOC| 8,596 8,791
13,092,494 12,078,304
REEE Current assets
JERTFRIE R EMEWFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 5,257 81,587
oy YNCI e & O Amount due from a subsidiary 2,956,640 2,981,857
RITEBR MRS Bank balances and cash 385,439 187,692
3,347,336 3,251,136
HEE Total assets 16,439,830 15,329,440
BRREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARG#EE Capital and reserves
BEITRR AN Issued capital 235,633 235,422
f& 1D mE Share premium 786,965 730,075
{1 Reserves 46(a) 6,803,464 3,937,100
RRERBE Total equity 7,826,062 4,902,597
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2021 2020
bkz3 AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBERE Non-current liabilities

RBERE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 5,011,493 7,336,108
HEaE Lease liabilities 488 1,634
5,011,981 7,337,742

REBEE Current liabilities
EoAth FE A 3K Other payables 29,459 76,900

EEEBEZREES Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 3,570,336 3,010,508
HEBRE Lease liabilities 1,992 1,693
3,601,787 3,089,101
wes Total liabilities 8,613,768 10,426,843
BRREZEEREEHE  Total equity and liabilities 16,439,830 15,329,440

RN TN 2022543 A28 %
T AERTBESE  THUTA

ITREREE

& B Wei Hong-Ming
ZEFEDirector

on its behalf by

H#H 4 —EB Junichiro Ida
EFEDirector

The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2022 and signed
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(a) HHE22H (a) Movements of the reserves
RE
EffERfE
RORERE ARERE (FU8E) BRERE  REEA 3
Investment
revaluation
Capital  Exchange reserve  Share-based
redemption  translation (Non- payment Retained
reserve reserve recycling) reserve Profits Total

ABBFR  ARRFZ ARRFZ  ARRFZ ARRTT ARETZ
RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBU00  RMBUO0  RMB0O0O  RMB000

#202051 A1H At 1 January 2020 400 216,339 (193) 392,245 5,072,816 5,681,607
AEREN Profit for the year - - - — 1273400 1273400
TEEAMZENE Other comprehensive income for the year - 296,550 1,859 — — 298,409
EnfERNTA IR Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 15,988 — 15,988
REBRETERT RN Shares issued under share option scheme — — — (1323) — (1323)
BRELN Shares option lapsed - — (75,556) 75,55 —
EIERIRE 20195 K E 2019 final and special final dividend
RERRABRE approved and paid - - - — (3330981  (3330981)
M2020512 4318 At 31 December 2020 400 512,889 1,606 331,354 3,090,791 3,937,100
®2021%1518 At 1 January 2021 400 512,889 1,666 331,354 3,090,791 3,937,100
AEREN Profit for the year - - - — 9335229 9335229
TEEAMZENE Other comprehensive income for the year - 102,016 - — — 102,016
ERfERNTA R Equity settled share-based transactions - - 5,075 — 5,075
RERRET ST RN Shares issued under share option scheme — - - (13,693) - (13,693)
BREXH Shares option lapsed - - - (61,853) 61,853 -
EHEREE 20205 K5 2020 final and special final dividend
RERIREHRE approved and paid - - - —  (4062,263)  (4,062,263)
BEERITE 2021 5B ERE 2021 special interim dividend approved
and paid — — — (2,500,000)  (2,500,000)
R2021E12831R At 31 December 2021 400 614,905 1,666 260,883 5,925,610 6,803,464
W2021%F12 A318 » "ARADE At 31 December 2021, the Company’s distributable reserves
ZIREBRRE NN NMEOREZ® including retained profits and share premium amounted to
# /B AR 16,712,575,0007T(2020 RMB6,712,575,000 (2020: RMB3,820,866,000).

F A FH3,820,866,0007T) °
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HZE2021F 12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2021

THBHEARAAAREELEEEE The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
ZXFEWBAR  EERAEZEZEN indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
RIS AFEERFZAEERNTE - A are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
KAEBRAEENEERINNH EF portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
DEHTIEMHBARNER S giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
RIBTLR ° excess length.
iR/
£ EXUHE ifhEs/ BRIRA JEfk BRAELL I IERH
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
RABFERREVERAA ARRAEE USs2 100% —  REZR
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
RERERMARLA hE US$72,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* NERRRERAR hE US$151,500,000 - 100% BERHEEHFE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
BEEERMERAA HE US$17,000,000 - 100% RERHENRE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RERGRMARAA hE US§17,800,000 - 100% BERHEHER
Wuhan TingYi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
BREERRERAT RE US$44,300,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RREERRMARAR P US§14,200,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* BRERRRARAAF Rl US$6,862,700 - 100% BERHENRE
* Nanjing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RABERNERRERAT i US$32,500,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Master Kong (Kunming) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
* BEB(ER T RRRERAR hE US$6,000,000 - 100% BERHEHER
* Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
EEEEER 313
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AN
£ EENY &R/ BRITRA JEfk BRAELL bl TEER
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E% 3
Directly Indirectly
TFRERRARAA hE US$29,000,000 - 100% HERHENRE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RAEERRARLA hE US§17,000,000 - 100% HERHENRE
* Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REBERHERRERAT i US$5,000,000 - 100% BERHEHFE
Master Kong [Chongging] PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., LTD. noodles
* PHERRRBRAR hE US$50,000,000 - 100% BERHEEHFE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
ERRERMARAA hE US$18,250,000 - 100% HEHEE
CHONGQING TINGYI FOOD CO., LTD. PRC Sale of instant noodles
RAEHRGARAT hE US$21,000,000 - 100% BERHEHER
Changsha Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
FEEMRRERAA hE US$24,000,000 - 100% BERHENED
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of meat
products
LERREEERARRA hE RMB15,000,000 - 100%  REEERS
Shanghai Kang Yi Corporate Management Limited * - PRC Provision of management service
FHEHRERAGEERL i US$227,500,000 - 100% BERR
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
EHERPRRREAMEERAT e 15$98,900,000 - 100% RE#R
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RERERMARAA hE RMB37,000,000 - 100% BERHERH
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of bakery
products
REERROVIERLE RERAEE US$55,263 90.50% —  REBR
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
RAERRERERAT REHE US$10,527.37 30.40% 451% BELER
KSF Beverage HoIding Co,, Ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
* REERRMAD hE US$60,840,000 - 7191% SERHEESM
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Col, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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Rl A
£ RS ifER/ BRITRA JEfRRAELL Bl TERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E& 3
Directly Indirectly
BMEZRRAN hE US$20,000,000 71.91% RERHEERM
Guangzhou T|ngj|n Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERRRMARLA hE US$73,500,000 7191% RERHEERM
* Wuhan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERERRMARAA hE US$24,000,000 71.91% REREEAR
Chongging ngjm Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EERRRMARAA hE US$15,000,000 7191% RERHEERM
Qingdao ngjm Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
wEEEZRmAN hE US$13,700,000 7191% BERHEEAR
Fujian Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RRERERGARAT hE US$16,176,500 7191% BERHEESR
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
AEEZRRARLA hE US$10,000,000 77191% BEREERD
Hefei Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERERRMARLA hE US$12,000,000 7191% RERHEERM
* Kunming Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BHERRMARAA hE US$24,000,000 7191% BERHEERM
* Zhengzhou ngjm Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* WHERRRAR hE US$16,000,000 7191% SERHESR
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REBERRRERAT hE US$41,000,000 7191% BERHERR
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* FRBERARERAT hE US$48,500,000 77191% BEREERD
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* FHBR2ARERAT i US$31,800,000 7191% BEREERD
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BHERRRAD hE US$36,500,000 7191% SERHEESM
* Yangzhou ngﬂn Beverage Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BAERRRERAR hE US$59,300,000 7191% SERHEESR
* Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RHVE (SEAEHRRARAA hE US$12,000,000 7191% BEREERD
* Master Kong (Wu\umuqi) Beverage Co,, Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BYERRRAD hE US$28,500,000 7191% SERHEESM
* Langfang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BMERRMAD hE US$41,500,000 7191% BERHEEAR
* Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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Rl A
£ e ifER/ BRITRA JEfRRAELL Bl TEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E& 3
Directly Indirectly
* MERRRBRA hE US$38,100,000 7191% BEREERD
* Hangzhou ngjm Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERERRRAN hE US$27,000,000 7191% SERHEESM
Jinan Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
LERERGARAT hE US$7,300,000 77191% #ERm
Shanghai Kong ng Food Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC Sale of beverages
EEHRREAFEERAT hE US$272,486,800 7191% REER
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd.  PRC Investment holding
TEERLR (BE) AR Bt US$129,736,518 791% REZR
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) L|m\ted Hong Kong Investment holding
RABRRRARRAT hE US$358,216,517 7191%  RERR
Master Kong PBB Investment Co. Ltd. # PRC Investment holding
BEHH (BN ARA hE US$197,800,000 7191% BEREERD
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ENBZIRHRERAT hE US$66,650,000 7191% BEREERR
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERBETARHARLA hE US$14,119,449 5064% BERHEERD
* Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REBEUAHHARLA hE US$20,000,000 401% BEREERD
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REBEAHHARLA hE RMB100,000,000 6856% BEREERD
* Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RABERNARAA hE US$6,600,000 7191% BEREERD
CHENGDU PEPSICO BEVERAGES COMPANY LIMITED PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RMESHHARAR hE US$1,350,000 7191% SERHEESR
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERREARHHARLA hE US$17,845,000 1354%  BERHEEAM
* CHONGQING PEPSI-TIANFUL BEVERAGE PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
COMPANY LIMITED
R BETEHHERAT hE US$12,250,000 7191% BERHEERR
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited * ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERREIRHHERAT hE US$14,694,778 7191% BEREERD
Kunming Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* B ETRRHARDA hE US$10,400,000 3896% BEREERD
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RYBZURSHERAT hE US$28,000,000 7191% SERHEEAM
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages

ERETERRARA S
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Rl A
£ RS ifER/ BRITRA JEfRRAELL Bl TERK

Place of

incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity

E# 3
Directly Indirectly
BNAZTRHRERAT G RMB19,764,000 - 7191% BEREERS
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BEHH (EE) ARAA G US$9,000,000 - 5454% BEREERD
Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
[ EEDES TN G US$5,000,000 - 7191% RERHEERR
Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
PHaERHERAA hE US$21,000,000 - 7191% BEREERD
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
REERSFUESHARLA hE US$35,000,000 - 77191% BEREERD
Harbin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
G AEIEHMHARAT & US$57,600,000 - 7191% BERHEESM
Shenyang Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EHEVIERERAR AERAEE US$50,000 100% — REBR
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co,, Ltd. BVI Investment holding
JEREVIERAR RBRARE US$1,000 100% —  REZR
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI Investment holding
REERHBVERAA RERAHE Uss1 100% — RE#ZR
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd BVI Investment holding
EBRERRAT RERLRE US$147,232,000 - 100% REZR
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
HEEREERARAT ZERAHE US$1 100% - REER
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
LEERARLRRRARLT G US$135,000,000 - 100% RENFEERH
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration PRC Provision of properties management
Co,, Ltd. * service
REREAAARLA hE US$200,000 100% —  REEERE
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of management services
* ZEWB AR GZMAERINEGE A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
YEIREE - companies.
# ES @It # English translation for identification purposes only.

HAth A S @R B A 2 [ B8 1 R AR S

Nt /B D -

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as wholly-
owned foreign enterprises.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Mazars CPA Limited

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREEFAEEBI18RPREL42E
Tel E&E: (+852) 2909 5555

Fax {85 (+852) 2810 0032
www.mazars.hk

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group”) set out on pages 152 to 317, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB21,510 million at 31 December 2021. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2021 was RMB11,685 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the impairment of machinery and equipment as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgment and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the consideration
of the indicators of impairment and the determination of the key
assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(o), 5(ii) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures on sample basis where appropriate in relation

to management’s impairment assessment of property, plant and

equipment included:

a)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgments applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”) and equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”)
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The carrying amounts of the Group’s FVPL and Designated FVOCI
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are RMB627 million and
RMB137 million respectively at 31 December 2021.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the management determines
the fair value of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI with reference to the
valuations performed by the investment manager or trust administrator
of these investments by applying valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques, in particular those that used significant inputs that are not
supported by observable market data and are based on assumptions
that are not supported by prices from observable current market
transactions. The sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs used
in the fair value measurement to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions used in the valuations may have significant impact on the
valuation of these financial assets.

We identified the valuation of FVPL and Designated FVOCI classified as
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as a key audit matter because of their
significance to the consolidated financial statements and the judgement
and estimation involved in determination of the fair value of these FVPL
and Designated FVOCI.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(j), 5(ii), 22 and 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation to
the valuation of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI included:

a)  Obtaining and examining the terms in the relevant investment
agreements of the financial assets;

b)  Obtaining and understanding of the Group's valuation process;

)  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the investment managers or trust
administrators;

d)  Discussing with the investment managers or fund adminstrators
and challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions, key inputs
and underlying data used; and

e)  Reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2021 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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42nd Floor, Central Plaza
mazaTS 18 Harbour Road
. Wanchai, Hong Kong
Independent Auditor’s Report EH A8 EPIEESMIE

To the shareholders of Tel &EiE: +852 2909 5555

g . . Fax {EH : +852 2810 0032
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. b oy
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 152 to 317, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Magzars CPA Limited
TERIR(ER)GIHNSHAERAT
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment amounted to RMB21,510 million at 31
December 2021. Of which, the carrying amount of the
Group's machinery and equipment as at 31 December
2021 was RMB11,685 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed
internal and external sources of information, including
but not limited to technical obsolescence to usage,
significant change in use of assets with adverse effect on
the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and
economic performance of an asset was expected to be
worse than expected, to assess whether there is any
indication that machinery and equipment may be
impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be
conducted. The carrying amounts of the assets will be
written down to their recoverable amounts which are the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable
amounts of the cash generating units ("“CGUs") to which
the assets belong principally based on their value in use
or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable amount of
certain individual assets with reference to their fair value
less costs of disposal.

We identified the impairment of machinery and
equipment as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
the judgment and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including
the consideration of the indicators of impairment and the
determination of the key assumptions applied in the
impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(o), 5(ii) and
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our key procedures on sample basis where appropriate in
relation to management's impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment included:

a) Discussing the process and basis used to identify
indicators of impairment of machinery and equipment
with management and reviewing utilisation records
and profitability of machinery and equipment, where
such indicators were identified, assessing whether
management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

b) Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model applied by the management in calculating the
impairment charges and the judgments applied in
determining the CGUs to which the assets belong;

c) Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the
discounted cash flow model used in the value in use
calculation;

d) Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the food and beverage
industry and market;

e) Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such
as future production plans and approved budgets and
assessing the reasonableness and feasibility of such
plans and budgets;

fy Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of
disposal by making reference to the market price of
an active market, if applicable; and

g) Considering the adequacy of the Group's disclosure
in respect of the impairment assessment.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”) and equity instruments
designated as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”)
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The carrying amounts of the Group’s FVPL and
Designated FVOCI classified as level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy are RMB627 million and RMB137 million
respectively at 31 December 2021.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the
management determines the fair value of these FVPL
and Designated FVOCI with reference to the valuations
performed by the investment manager or trust
administrator of these investments by applying valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques, in particular
those that used significant inputs that are not supported
by observable market data and are based on
assumptions that are not supported by prices from
observable current market transactions. The sensitivity to
changes in unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions used in the valuations may have significant
impact on the valuation of these financial assets.

We identified the valuation of FVPL and Designated
FVOCI classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as
a key audit matter because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the judgement and
estimation involved in determination of the fair value of
these FVPL and Designated FVOCI.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(j), 5(ii), 22
and 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate,
in relation to the valuation of these FVPL and Designated
FVOCI included:

a) Obtaining and examining the terms in the relevant
investment agreements of the financial assets;

b) Obtaining and understanding of the Group’s valuation
process;

c) Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies and assumptions adopted by the
investment managers or trust administrators;

d) Discussing with the investment managers or fund
adminstrators and challenging the reasonableness of
the assumptions, key inputs and underlying data
used; and

e) Reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of the
sensitivity analysis.
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To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information in the 2021 annual report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the

preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

e

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:
Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132





